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St. Thomas sets its heart toward being a Christian home which welcomes, encourages and seeks 
to inspire All People. 

With God's help we strive to: 

'11 Be a community built on unconditional love and understanding 

'11 Nurture our members so they may carry the Light of Christ into the world 

'11 Be prepared and strengthened to live our faith in all areas of our lives 
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Sidesperson Co-ordinators Diane Clement and Liz Norris 
Vestry Clerk Liz Norris 
Snowflake Bazaar Bonnie McNally 
Funeral Reception Committee Judith Dallaway 
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4 



!AGENDA- ANNUAL VESTRY SuNDAY, FEBRUARY 25th, 2018 

1. Opening Prayer 

2. Appointment of Vestry Clerk and Declaration of Membership 

(Canon Law c5.02.1) 

3. Rector's Address 

4. Acceptance ofMinutes of2017 Vestry 

5. Presentation of2017 Financial Statements 

6. Presentation and Approval ofBudget for 2018 

7. Acceptance of2017 Annual Reports 

a. Wardens' Reports 

b. Parish Groups and Organizations 

8. Statistical Report 

9. Business Arising from 2017 Annual Report 

10. Letters of Thanks 

11. Appointments 

12. Nominations Committee Report and Elections 

13. New Business 

14. Adjournment and Closing Prayers 
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1MINUTES- ANNUAL VESTRY MEETING 
FEBRUARY 26th, 2017 

Item Description 

1. Opening Prayer - The Rev Jane McCaig 

2. MOTION N0.1. Acceptance of the Agenda for Vestry 2017 
Nicole Dallaway 2nd by Tanya Drew carried 

3. Appointment ofVestry Clerk, Liz Norris and Declaration ofMembership (Canon Law c5.12.1) 

4. Rector's address previously given at the 10:00 a.m. service. 

5. MOTION NO.2. Acceptance of minutes for 2016 Vestry 
Moved to accept Nicole Dallaway Seconded by William Passmore Carried 

6. 2016 Financial Statements presented by Liz Hall 
Incomes: The year ended with a surplus $12. Compared to the budgeted deficit of$2,046. This 
was achieved due to your offerings and support of our fundraising events as well as careful 
expenditure management by all Church leaders. 80% of our total income is from offerings 
The total offerings received in 2016 were flat, no increase. Total Fundraising was down about 
13% but this was offset by higher Rental Incomes of almost 16%. Other assessed incomes were 
28% higher due to donations made for the 150th Anniversary events, loyalty rebates for Home 
Hardware and Hurley's. 
Fundraising make up the second highest source of income for St Thomas. Please continue to 
support as many events as you can throughout the year. Invite friends and family to events. 
Expenditures: Overall our total expenditure were 2.3% lower than we spent in 2015. Diocesan 
commitments and Staff costs were both lower in 2016 while office costs were 11% higher due to 
a repair that had to be made for the projector. Property costs were the same. We continued to 
manage our property costs. Our investments in energy savings are paying off and a warmer 
winter also helped. 
Overall, the Church has about $90,000 invested in cash and readily available cash-like assets and 
about 91 ,000 in longer term assets which are managed by the Diocese for us. 
In December 2016 we closed the 150th Anniversary Fund as planned. The 1501h planning team 
managed two years of planning and events and only used $650 form the GIFT fund out of the 
allocation amount of$6,500. What a fantastic job this team has done. 
Notes of Interest: the Grocery Certificate program sales decreased again in 2016. The sales did 
not meet the budget target again meaning we lose the ability to transfer the commissions we earn 
to the General Fund. 
Your generosity in 2016 allowed us to contribute: 
$4,367 to PWRDF 
$ 1,450 to the Kanata-Stittsville Refugee Cause 
$ 909 to the Stittsville Food Bank 
And over $15,000 to other charities including Diocesan-led programs 
Questions from the floor: 

6 



Thank you to Bob McCaig for the monthly financial statements and for providing us with such a 
great presentation. 
Where did the plant sale proceeds go. They went to the ACW account since they ran the sale this 
year. If the funds are needed they can be available. 

What is ECOPS. Equalization to level out salaries to help other Parishes to pay for their Priests. It 
supports ministries. The overall amount is about $20,000. 

Church closings are not done by the Diocese. Many parishes are amalgamating. The expectation is 
that the Fair share burden will decrease as mentioned at Synod. 

MOTION NO.3 It is moved to Accept the Financials 2016 Audited Financial Statements as 
presented. 
Moved by Bonnie McNally Seconded by William Passmore Carried 

7. Presentation and Approval ofBudget for 2017 Presented by Pat McNally 
Total incomes for 2017 will be about .5% lower than in 2016. Total Expenditures to drop slightly by 
1.0%. Diocesan commitments will rise slightly 1.9 %higher. Staff and office costs continue to 
decline and are expected to be 2.8% lower or $1,000 lower. Property costs will be higher by 6.5% due 
to higher snow removal costs and higher maintenance costs in general. The Buy-A-Light program 
which should save about $500 a year in electricity costs 1 to 2 year pay back. 
Parish Outreach will be fundraising again in 201 7. 
Parish Programs are budgeted to be higher by $600 because we are spending more on Adult 
Education, God's Garden, Music for the Choir and for Pastoral Care. 
Opportunities and Risks: Incomes such as using Grocery Certificate program and attending and 
supporting our fundraising activities. Continue to meet special request for Refugee and Outreach 
ministries and other special funds such as the Open Table fund and the Rector's Discretionary fund. 
Increasing People' s Pulpit advertising and securing additional renter of the Church facilities . 
Parish Council is also reviewing how to further reduce costs particularly for mailing, photocopying, 
and telephone costs. 
Also support our rewards program at Hurleys and Home Hardware. 
Questions from the floor 
Question about our Diocesan Commitment. Why are they increasing. 
Due to ECOPS going up by the discretion of the Diocese. Middle aged priests are eligible for high 
incomes. Our assessments goes up. 
Question about the Grocery Certificates program. Why is there only one store left to buy from? 
Liability too high to include other stores. Funds are not available to expand the program. Suggestion 
that we should have a roster of sellers on a Sunday mornings. 
Question about choir budget and new music. Why has it been cut? 
Nothing was spent in 2016. The Choir music and Youth group can have funding now from the Gift 
fund. 
Question about Fair Share. Money goes out into the Diocese for many things including outreach. 
Why could we not change the amount in the fair share to allow a line item in our budget for outreach. 
MOTION NO.4 Moved that we reduce our contribution of Fair share of$3000. To have it as a line 
item in our budget for Outreach. 
Moved by William Passmore 2nd by Gary Graham Defeated. 
Discussion: If this was possible it should have been done in October before the Fair Share was 
accepted. It is too late to change anything now and the Diocese may not accept that proposal in any 
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case. It may be too late to change the Fair share but we can decide to raise money for an outreach 
project this year solely for that project and not go into general account. 
In future William Passmore suggested that we see a rough-cut budget and include a line item for 

outreach. We individually support outreach in the church such as the Angel Tree, clothing donations 
and PWRDF. It was suggested aside from supporting events we could increase our giving' s 2% . 
Bonnie McNally, outreach chair suggested that if we put on special events for outreach we do need 
lots of help. Gary Graham who supported the motion above would like to see outreach support as a 
line item. One year a certain% of the proceeds of the Fish Fry was given to an outreach project. 
Bob McCaig cautioned that we still have to use fundraisers to make up the General Fund to meet our 
Budget. This means more work from the congregation. 
MOTION NO. 5 restated moved that we would like to see a line item in the 2018 Budget of $3000 for 
Outreach and not take away our Diocesan commitment. Time frame must be before September 201 7 

for 2018 as a rough-cut Budget. 
Moved by Pat Dalphy Seconded by Barbara Bottriell defeated 
We need the support to do fundraising and there is bum out now. It's Optics to have a line item. 

MOTION NO. 6 It is move that the 2017 Budget be accepted as presented. 
Moved by Liz Hall Seconded by Bonnie McNally Carried Two Opposed. 

8. MOTION NO.7 It is moved that the 2016 Annual reports to Vestry 2017 be accepted as presented. 
Moved by Judy Dallaway Seconded by Marlyn Powell Carried 
Question on the statistics. Is ninety-five the average Sunday Attendance? Yes this is accurate. 
Approve the Statistical Report. 
Accepted by Merilee Clarke Seconded by Nicole Dallaway 

9. Business arising from 2016 Vestry. 
Worship Space Renewal presented by Diane Lachance. 
A committee was struck to study the renewal of the worship space; to examine the optimum use of the 

space including flooring and seating; to explore related costs and source of funding; to report back 
regularly to Parish Council and the congregation, and to be completed by Vestry 20 17. 
Three specific areas: 1. Replace carpet in the sanctuary 2. Reconfigure worship space; 3 relocate 
nursery. The carpet is 25 years old and is ripped and stained in place. 
The worship space could be changed while the carpet is being replace. Could have more room for 
music ministry; move altar closer to the people and this renewal was one of the top 3 items identified 
in the recent visioning process. 
Considerations about the flooring; Carpet is preferable for acoustics; safer when floor is wet. Two 
options were solid carpeting or carpet tiles. Carpet tiles are more expense but could be easily replaced 
if an area gets damaged. The price range is between $15,000 to $20,000. 
Some ideas for the worship space: Move the altar forward closer to the people. Straighten the jagged 
contour of the riser at the front and remove the riser currently under the Altar. Reposition the choir 
and comer stone so they have more room to perform and to grow. Organ and piano move. Consider 
the pros and cons of chairs verses pews. Why pews? Many prefer to know when we pray; many are 
emotionally attached to pews been part of church experience all our loves. Pews can make it easier to 
keep small children contained. Why chairs? Chairs would be more comfortable; Easier to 
accommodate groups, for conferences, Christmas pageants, Chair would facilitate cleaning the new 
carpet. We could have a combination of both. Other churches have done this quite successfully. 
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Younger families don't have the same emotional attachment to pews and might find it more inviting to 
have comfortable chairs to sit in. 
Nursery relocation; suggestion of closing the balcony with plexiglass panels, installing speakers and 
moving the nursery to that area. This would allow caregivers to be directly involved in the service and 
the balcony is underutilized at present. The approximate amount for this is $13,000. "someone from 
the floor" suggested that the cloak room still be considered as a possible location for the nursery. 
Anyone with more suggestions are invited to comment and this is an open dialogue. A Vote ofThanks 
you to the committee: Diane Lachance , chair, Rev Jane McCaig; Merilee Clarke; Isabelle Routhier, 
Nicole Dallaway, Bonnie McNally and Luc Fauccin. 

10. Letters of Thanks -address 
11. Appointments 
12. Nominating committee report and elections. The list of people nominated for 2017 found on page 13 

of the Vestry package. Any new nominations from the floor? None. 
MOTION NO.8. It is moved that the 2017 Nomination positions be accepted. 
Moved by Judy Dallaway Seconded by Lorna Graham Carried. 

MOTION TO ADJOURN Moved by Bonnie McNally. 
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WARDENS' REPORTS- RECTOR'S WARDEN 

Matthew 13:5 2 -And Jesus said to them, "Therefore every scribe who has become a disciple of the 
kingdom of heaven is like a head of a household, who brings out of his treasure things new and old. " 
One of the main purposes for our annual vestry meeting is to not only report on the successes and 
benchmarks of the year past, but also to cast our gaze forward, mindful of our parish sesquicentennial 
motto: "Todays church for tomorrow's world". 
Over five years have elapsed since Bonnie and I joined the Stittsville and St. Thomas family, and it has 
been fulfilling and inspirational for us. I am continually amazed at how well we as a parish pull together 
when occasions warrant special effort, culminating in a successful conclusion every time. This is due to 
the dedication and hard work of volunteers who have stepped forward to give of their time, talent and 
treasures. 
I am mindful of the truth that all of us approach our time differently at St. Thomas. It is perfectly 
appropriate to enter through the doors on a Sunday, to worship, sing, pray and be inspired by the Spirit 
through word, music and interaction with others in the congregation. It is equally a blessing when 
someone comes forward in response to a call to serve in some capacity, whether a one-time occasion or as 
part of the team who are indispensable members of the face of each Sunday service, often working 
unsung behind the scenes. 
Two terms are now history for me as Rector's Warden. It is with a deep sense of humility that I have 
agreed to a third term of office. Each year brings with it new opportunities and challenges. The role of 
Rector's Warden is spelled out in the Canons and by-laws of our Diocese, but suffice to say that support 
of the Rector is top priority, followed immediately by fiduciary and corporate responsibilities as a 
member of Corporation and Parish Council. 
It has been a distinct pleasure and honour to serve with Rev. Jane, Shirley Chennette, Hugh O'Toole, Liz 
Norris, Pat Brush, Don Gillen and each member of Parish Council and the numerous council sub
committees. 
I wish to thank Bob McCaig for his stellar leadership as our Treasurer/Bookkeeper and Facilities Manager 
since my arrival on council. I am confident that his successors will acquit their duties admirably and will 
deliver an equally high standard of financial acuity and property management to the parish. 
We must always be ready for something new to happen in our lives. Our church life should be no 
different. New people and circumstances arrive, just as dear loved ones now find that it is time to move 
on to the next phase of their lives. We will sorely miss Rev. Jane and Bob. They will no doubt remain as 
friends to all of us and we will always treasure their thirteen years of exemplary leadership, myriad skills 
and inspiration. 
In due course we will welcome a new minister, and under God's guidance the superlative work in the 
vineyard begun at St. Thomas in 1866 will thrive and flourish in proclaiming the Good News of Jesus 
Christ in Stittsville and beyond. We will continue to build on current successes and will develop and 
implement new and varied ways to engage and attract our growing community. 
As outlined elsewhere in this report and throughout our calendar year, you will be aware that our church 
home is now approaching thirty years of age, and the original or old church has passed the fifty year 
mark. Although the infrastructure has been well-maintained, and some items have been effectively 
upgraded over the years, there remains much ahead that must be done to ensure a safe and viable worship 
space. This will take careful planning, resolve, time and financial commitment to carry each task through 
to completion. 
As I have witnessed on many occasions since arriving in my new church 
home in 2012, we shall all rise to the challenges ahead of us and meet them 
with the usual St. Thomas flair! 
There is much to celebrate in looking back on 2017, and even more to 
eagerly dream, work and pray for as the time ahead unrolls before us. 
Respectfully submitted, 
Pat McNally February 2018 
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rWARDENS' REPORT- PEOPLE'S WARDEN 

2017/18 has been a year of fluctuation and in the end, much change facing St. Thomas' . I have 
appreciated the experience of serving as Peoples' Warden and Chair of Parish Council. It has 
taught me the great complexities and details involved in the running of a parish. As you will see 
in reports from the multitude of ministries at work here at St. Thomas', the year has been busy, 
fruitful, satisfying, at times frustrating but ultimately a wonderful year of serving God and his 
church through teaching, prayer, action, and giving. The gifts ofthis church are many. 
At the end of the summer, concerns were raised about the numbers at our services and the 
question of amalgamating two services into one was put forward. After prayer, discussion and 
deliberation, it was decided to hold a parish meeting, much like a "town hall" to discuss this 
issue. For me it was one of the highlights of the year where people came together, discussed 
varying viewpoints respectively and had the opportunity to be heard. I believe such meetings are 
helpful and necessary really, in this age of social media where issues can spin out of control, to 
get a real sense of the thoughts of the parish as a whole. It is so important to listen to each other; 
as Jesus said in the book of Matthew, " ... the things that come out of the mouth come from the 
heart ... ". I hope our hearts are full oflove as we talk about issues facing our parish. 
Last November we, the wardens, Rev. Jane and our Archdeacon Ross, had the opportunity to 
meet with Bishop John to discuss the idea of shared ministry with other parishes in the diocese. 
This idea had been raised at Parish Council earlier in the year and initially the Bishop did not 
want us to move forward with this idea. The wardens wrote to him and were granted a meeting 
to discuss it. I found the meeting very energizing and uplifting in that we talked about thinking 
creatively about our parish ministries and how we can gain support, expand what we do and 
more fully serve God with our brothers and sisters in Christ from around the diocese. We need 
to look at it as development of richer ministries, not as a financial strategy. The financial savings 
may follow, but we need to start with ministry. This meeting basically ended with the action 
item of having more discussions, conversations and prayerful reflection to decide on where and 
with whom to move forward with this idea. Exciting times!! 
I also attended Synod for the first time last year and enjoyed the learning and sharing that 
happened there. There is a lot going on in the diocese and much to learn. We the delegates had 
a moment of pride (forgive us), when a speaker talked about how impossible it would be for one 
parish alone to provide a monthly meal for the community. Our Open Table is such an 
achievement, we can all be proud (for a moment) of this amazing ministry. So much was shared 
at Synod it is difficult to boil it all down, but suffice it to say there are opportunities for further 
learning and service and collaboration if we want to explore different ideas. 
I have after much prayer, reflection and discussion decided I am unable to continue as People's 
Warden at this time. I believe St. Thomas' is facing an exciting time of change and growth and I 
do not have what the church needs in a leader to guide it through this change. I am grateful for 
the support of Pat McNally, Rev. Jane and Hugh O'Toole this past year as well as all of Parish 
Council. 
Romans 12:4-6a: Just as each of us has one body with many members, and these members do 
not all have the same function, so in Christ we who are many form one body, and each member 
belongs to all the others. We have different gifts, according to the grace given us. (NIV) 
Respectfully, 
Shirley Chennette 
Peoples' Warden 
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2018 NOMINATING COMMITTEE REPORT 

Proposed Parish Council Candidates for 2018 

Bishop's Appointment: *The Reverend Jane McCaig 

* denotes member of Parish Council 

Rector's Appointments: *Rector's Warden - Pat McNally 

* Bookkeeper- Ryan Dallaway 

Recording Clerk- Elizabeth Norris 

Financial Reviewers- John Smith and Lyle Stevenson 

* Church School - Merilee Clarke 

Nursery Coordinator- Judy McCorkell 

Election: 

* People's Warden - William Passmore 

*Deputy Warden- Hugh O'Toole 

*Members of Synod- Susan Lomas (year 1) 

William Passmore (year 1) 

*Synod Alternate -

*Outreach - Bonnie McNally 

* Fundraising and Fellowship- Nicole Dallaway 

* Stewardship- Bob Lomas 

* Facilities - Stephen Dow 

*Members at large- #1 Liz Hall 

#2 (to be nominated) 

# 3 Jodi Sullivan 

Nomination Report respectfully submitted by: 

Rev. Jane McCaig, Pat McNally 
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fSTATISTICAL REPORT 

Service Information Year 2015 2016 2017 

Total Sunday Attendance: 4472 5156 4076 

Average Sunday Attendance: 88 99 88 

Average Sunday Attendance: 8:30am Service: 26 28 26 

10:30 am Service: 79 95 70 

Average Summer Sunday Attendance: 51 52 42 

Total Number of Worshippers: 5885 5928 5813 

Total Number of Communicants: 4958 5207 4231 

Total Number of Eucharistic Celebrations: 125 114 125 

Seniors Resident Services: 18 16 19 

Morning Prayer Services: 4 1 8 

Evening Prayer Services: 4 1 4 

Confirmation Services: 1 0 0 

Marriages: 1 2 3 

Funerals/Memorial Services in the Church 5 4 4 

Funerals/Memorial Services in Funeral Home or 

at Graveside 1 2 8 

Baptisms: 3 3 4 

Attendance at Special Services: 

Ash Wednesday 31 25 22 

Maundy Thursday 35 30 35 

Ecumenical Liturgy 100 90 100 

Passion Liturgy 24 36 37 

Christmas Service Attendance: 325 348 310 

Cemetery Service: 55 75 52 

13 



Each Sunday greeters, readers, sidespersons, and intercessors arrive at the church ready to help make our 
Sunday morning worship go smoothly. The Altar Guild lovingly and diligently prepares the altar and 
decorates the worship space for Sunday. And, not only that, they take care to decorate the church as so 
that we can have a visual experience on high festival days. Gary Graham and Pat McNally input the 
liturgy into the computer so that it will be up on the screen on Sunday. And, let's not forget the people 
who run the projectors at the services. This all goes to say that it takes many hands to have Sunday's run 
smoothly. 

We continue to be blessed with the presence of our Honorary Assistants, Canon Michael McKinley, and 
the Reverend Sharron Reykdal-Bradley. Pastor Sharron unfortunately has not been able to be with us 
very often this year and we pray for her and Don. Then there are our three licensed Lay Readers, William 
Passmore, Bonnie McNally and Pat McNally. Thank you all for sharing your gifts of leadership in the 
worship community. Robin Tilger has retired from her Lay Readership and I thank her for her thoughtful 
homilies and her liturgical leadership over the years. 

Every year I thank Liz Norris for the gift she is to our community as our office administrator. This year is 
no different. Liz has been in her job now for 20 years and we thank her for sharing her skills, time, and 
herself to our congregation. Liz this past year felt the time had come to engage a new facet of her life. 
She made the decision to retire. On behalf of the congregation I wish to thank her for her service to this 
community, her calm demeanor, her patience and her great sense of humour. Blessings as you enter into 
this next adventure in life! 

Our community has been blessed with a few youth who assist at the Lord's Table. It is always a joy to 
work alongside of them. 

Respectfully submitted, 

The Rev. Jane McCaig 

Youth Servers for 2018 are: 

Brooke Sutherland 
Luke O'Toole 

Darcie Watson-Laird Neave Watson-Laird Keara Watson-Laird 

Appointed as Lay Communion Assistants at St. Thomas, Stittsville for 2018: 

John Bottriell 
Tanya Drew 
Liz Norris 

Shirley Chennette 
Bonnie McNally 

William Passmore 

Merilee Clarke 
Pat McNally 
Robin Tilgner 
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Barbara Cordukes 
Harry Mercer 
Arlene Simonovich 



.LITURGICAL SUPPORT GROUPS - ALTAR GUILD 

ALTAR GUILD REPORT- 2017 
St. Thomas Altar Guild 

Supply Fund: Jan. P\ 2017 to Dec 3Pt 2017 

Revenues: HST Refund $ 194.60 
From General Fund (Budgeted)$ 300.00 
Bottle return 2.20 

Expenses: 

Flower Fund 

Revenue: 

Expenses: 

Liturgica (wafers) 
Liturgica (wine) 
James M. McLean 

Opening Balance 
Net Loss 
Closing Balance 

Jan. 1, 2017 to Dec. 3 pt 2017 

Donations 

Talisman Flowers 
Brown's Y.I.G. 

Opening Balance: 
Net Gain 
Closing Balance: 

Submitted by Arlene Simonovich - Treasurer 
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$ 496.80 

$ 193.96 
$ 478.41 
$ 229.39 
$ 901.76 
$663.96 
(404.96) 
$259.00 

$920.00 

$ 559.35 
$704.44 

$ 1,433.93 
$ 215.56 
$ 1,649.49 



10:30 A.M. SIDESPERSON REPORT TO VESTRY 

Thanks to the 12 dedicated members of the Sidesperson team who faithfully serve each Sunday 
of the year, in the Sanctuary of St. Thomas. Duties include greeting, handing out bulletins, 
taking up the offering and ushering during communion, along with tidying up after services. 

John Bottriell 
Susan Boutilier 
Diane Clement 
Helen Greatrex 
David and Pam Hazen 
Bob and Sue Lomas 
Olive McKinley 
Pat McNally 
Marlyn Powell 
Heather Sullivan 

If you would like to be on the Sidesperson team, please speak to me at the 10:30 service, or make 
contact by calling 613-825-6223 or send an email to bill.di@sympatico.ca. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Diane Clement, 
Sidesperson Co-ordinator, 
10:30 am service. 
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It was a great privilege to become the Choir Director at the end of February. I was pleased to find a group 
of choristers that are kind, welcoming, and helpful, but more importantly, a choir that has a sense of itself 
and how the choristers' musicianship can support and enhance worship. They are more than willing to 
learn new things and have been flexible in accommodating new ways of doing things. Just as importantly, 
this is a choir that likes to laugh and have fun, and they support each other in learning new music as well 
as through the ups and downs of life. 
The choir participated in "A Choired Afternoon" - the multi-choir concert in October. As the host choir, 
not only did they help with welcoming and guiding the other choirs, they opened the concert with three 
anthems: "How Can I Keep From Singing", "Listen to Me", and "Amazing Grace". I was very proud of 
them. 

Members of the Choir at the end of 2017 were: 
Beth Barden, Barbara Bottriell, Susan Chapman, Tanya Drew, Don Gillen, Gary Graham, Celia Houtman, 
Linda Noble, Laura Reynolds, Sylvia Stephens, and Naomi Watson-Laird, with occasional help from 
Sylvi Dawes and Liz Norris 
If anyone of any age would like to join the choir, either for a season or longer, choir practice is on 
Thursday evenings from 7 to 9 p.m., September through June. There is no audition. The only requirements 
are that you should be able to sit relatively still for one hour, you should not be wearing any perfumed 
self-care or laundry products, and it is helpful if you can read English. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Patricia Brush 

f MUSIC MINISTRIES REPORTS - Cornerstone Report 

Cornerstone continues to sing regularly once a month at the 10.30am Service- usually on the 4th Sunday. 
We take a singing break in July/August. 
We continue to introduce newer contemporary songs, as well as enjoying old favourites. 
It is heartening to realise these songs are sung and enjoyed in Churches all over the world . . . as an 
example, 
Pierre and Mary Anne recently sung "There is a Redeemer" and "In Christ Alone" when they recently 
worshipped 
at The Garrison Church in Sydney, Australia. 
In September we sadly said goodbye to Talia de Salis, one of our vocalists, who is studying in Windsor, 
Ontario. 
We wish her God' s best in her career ... . Keep singing Talia! 

Some Special times this year: 
Hosting Open Table in February 
Singing at the 6am Easter Sunrise Service 
Singing at the Cemetery Service in June 
Singing at the Celebration of Life Service for Ryan Double, son of Don Double, in October 
Singing at the funeral of John Shouldice in October 
Singing at the Celebration of Life Service for Tracy O'Shaughnessy, Gwelda's daughter, in November 
Singing at the Christmas Pageant, with the Choir, in December 
Singing at the 4.30pm Service on Christmas Eve* 

17 



[MUSIC 'MINISTRIES ~PORTS 

*This year we added Bible pictures with our Anthem "Thoms in the Straw" by Graham Kendrick - to 
help tell the story. 
We also welcomed Sophia Pierce as an additional soloist ... Thankyou Sophia. 
We hope you sing with us again! 

We continue to thank God for the Choir ... and for the easy support and co-operation which exists 
between our groups. 
Thank you to the Projectionists, without whom there would be no overheads for us all to follow. 
As we say goodbye to the Rev Jane, we want to thank her for all her support over the years ... and her 
confidence in, and 
encouragement of all that we do. We wish her God's blessings as she retires. 
We also want to thank all of you for your love, encouragement and support. 

We are looking for new Comerstoners .... ! Please consider joining us if you enjoy singing lively music 
and/or play an 
Instrument ... We practice on Tuesday evenings at the Church at 7 pm. Talk to any of us ... or just 
come! 

Finally . . .. Thank you to my fellow groupees ... it is a joy and a privilege singing and praying together. 
Continue to share 
your musical gifts generously with St. Thomas. 

"My chains are gone, I've been set free, My God my Saviour has ransomed me. 
And like a flood His mercy reigns, Unending love, amazing grace." 
Amazing Grace (My chains are gone) 
John Newton 
Chris Tomlin 
Louie Giglio 
c2006 worshiptogether.com Songs 

Respectfully Submitted 
Mary Passmore for Cornerstone 

Pierre Reinhard: Guitar 
Mary Anne Reinhard: Vocals, Rhythm, Rainstick 
Liz Norris: Guitar, Vocals, Penny Whistle 
Sylvi Dawes: Percussion, Bongos, Vocals 
Janice Gervais: Vocals 
Gary Graham: Trumpet, Vocals 
Luc Faucon: Vocals 
Diane Faucon: Vocals 
Mary Passmore: Piano, Vocals 

Leave of Absence: Talia de Salis: Vocals 
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EDUCATIONAL REPORT - St Tbomas Church School 

Report not submitted 

I . 

EDUCATIONAL REPORT -StThomas Nursery 

StThomas Church Nursery The 2017 year started with one little regular attendee at the nursery. 
Occasionally we'd also get a few more which was always a pleasure. Pat Dalphy, Jennifer 
Stipetic, Bonnie McNally and Judy McCorkell happily volunteered. 
This past September our little regular graduated to Sunday School and that left us with no 
children for the nursery. We will pray that situation will soon change and we will be blessed by 
more happy little people playing in the nursery. 

Respectfully submitted 

Judy McCorkell 

,EDUCATIONAL REPORT - EFM Education for Ministry 

The EFM seminar group is a University level Theology course, prepared and run by the 
University of the South in Sewanee Tennessee, but which is run at StThomas'! It is designed for 
lay people to instruct, empower and assist them in the development of their baptismal ministry. 
The course is a 4 year course, but participants commit to it one year at a time. 
Year 1 - Old Testament . 
Year 2 New Testament 
Year 3 Church History from IOOAd-2017 
Year 4 Theology, ethics, other faiths. 
The Course also includes Spiritual autobiography, Theological refection and the opportunity to 
explore our personal baptismal ministry. 
We have 8 participants (maximum permitted is 12) who come from different churches; St 
Thomas' Stittsville, StJames Carp, St Paul's Kanata. St Stephen's Ottawa and Christchurch 
Aylmer. 
If you would like to find out more, please contact Rev Jane or myself. There will be an 
opportunity to sign up for the program in the Spring and join the program next September. 

Respectfully submitted 

William Passmore (Mentor) 
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fEDUCATIONAL REPORT Home Bible Study 

The StThomas Home Bible study group continues to gather on Wednesday evenings. Still with 
an "average" attendance of8 -12. We concluded the early study with a pot luck celebration at the 
end of April2017. 

Starting in January 2017 we to studied "Globalisation", a study book from the UK. This study 
continued to bring about much discussion & took us to the summer. Following the summer we 
met again in September 2017 to study "Ruth & Esther". Once again the author ofthis study 
presented many questions that led to an interesting dialogue of these two prominent women in 
the Bible. We break during the Advent Study being held at the church. It is amazing how the 
weeks disappear & we are coming to an early Lent already! Some will attend the Lenten Study 
at the church, so the home study will take a break. At this time we have not chosen the study to 
read, following Easter 2018. 

We always give thanks that we are able to study, chat & discuss so freely & 
openly, in our bountiful country. 

As always Everyone is welcome! 

Respectfully submitted by 

Lorna & Gary Graham 
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Once again the people of St Thomas have been exceedingly generous with their time, their 
talents and their money . 

In 2017 we supported financially: 

The Stittsville Food Banlc 
Loonies for Lent 
A Choired Afternoon 
Other donations 
TOTAL. 

Constance Bay Flood relief 
PWRDF 
Open Table Meal expenses 
1/2 of Fair Share to Diocese 

(For Diocesan Outreach) 

$ 238.35 
1400.00 
709.05 
$2347.40 

$630.00 
$3869.50 

$2876.02 
$13,725.50 

OUTREACH TOTAL. 
Add to this ..... 

$23,448.42 

* frequent donations of clothing and toiletries delivered to the various shelters around the city 
* 2 very large bins of dry goods from 'A Choired Afternoon", several containers of 

food following our Thanksgiving services, and regular ongoing donations of 
food for the Stittsville Food Bank 

* gift cards in support of the Angel Tree at Christmas 
* at least 250 cups of hot chocolate handed out at the Parade of Lights. 
* hours spent by many parishioners assisting with monthly Open Table dinners. 
*participating member of the Kanata Stittsville Refugee Support Group 
*the various ministries supported financially by ACW, available in a separate report 

Respectfully submitted, 
Bonnie McNally 
Outreach Chair 

HOT CHOCOLATE ANYONE? 
For a few years now, a small but enthusiastic group has served hot chocolate from our Church, to 
the community of Stittsville, at the annual Santa Claus Parade in December. 
This year we served: 
315 cups ofhot chocolate 
200 candy canes 
2 big packets of marshmallows (mini whites) 
Many smiles! Lots of chats. 
We also had poster boards advertising our Open Table meals, our Church Services, and the 
Stairwell Carollers Concert. 
We all had lots of fun .... Consider joining us next December! 

Respectfully submitted, Mary Passmore, Lorna & Gary Graham, Hugh O'Toole, Luke O'Toole, 
Susan Dow, Pat McNally and Judy Dallaway. 
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A total of20 packages ofPWRDF Christmas cards were sold this year and the money forwarded 
to Toronto. Tax receipts were sent to all purchasers by PWRDF. The 2017 designs were 
beautiful - a Christmas caravan and a stained glass rendition ofThree Kings. 
The parish has continued to support the work ofPWRDF either with regular donations via PAR 
or by using the blue envelopes in our envelope packages to make donations. St. Thomas has 
contributed $3870 in this way. Individual parishioners have also contributed directly to PWRDF. 
The Primate's World Relief and Development Agency is the Canadian Anglican response for 
emergency relief, refugees, development and justice. Its headquarters is in Toronto and it 
collects and administers contributions from all Anglican churches in Canada in order to help 
those in need here at home and in many countries of the world. 
PWRDF works in 28 countries with local partners which may be a church or a secular 
organization to achieve its aims. It works with local leaders to determine needs, and the most 
appropriate responses to those needs. Its goal is to improve the quality of daily life, to help 
people become more self-reliant and to address the root causes of poverty and injustice. 
Some examples of recent work are providing bicycles to improve the delivery of health care in 
Tanzania, the establishment of summer camps to help with the recovery of Fort McMurray here 
in Canada, a grant of$40,000 to Cuba and Haiti to help with the aftermath of Hurricane Irma and 
aid to Mexico after the large earthquake in September of 2017. There are ongoing needs in so 
many areas and both disaster relief and the ongoing work of partnering with local people to 
improve their lives are what we are supporting when we donate to PWRDF. 
Tara McDougall has joined Barbara Bottriell this year in being a representative for St. Thomas 
with regard to PWRDF. We will try to keep you informed of any special needs and our thanks 
goes to all those in the parish who support this work. 

Respectfully submitted by Barbara Bottriell 
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!outreach/ Refugee Sponsorship Groug 

The Kanata/Stittsville Refugee Sponsorship Group (KSRSG) was formed in 1996. Our 
primary purpose is to sponsor refugees from around the globe and provide them with a safe haven 
and the opportunity for a new life here in Canada. Our eight member churches include Kanata, 
Stittsville and Glen Cairn United, St. John's South March, St. Thomas, and St. Paul's Anglican 
and St. Andrew's and Trinity Presbyterian Churches. For those whom we sponsor, we provide 
financial, social, emotional and logistical support for their first year in Canada. Our funding 
comes from the annual pledges from member churches and from occasional fundraising activities. 
2017 was a very busy year for us. Here are some ofthe areas upon which we have focused our 
efforts. 

1. Syrian Refugees: 
In June 2017 we completed our sponsorship commitment for a single male from Syria 

who had been living in Jordan. His family members here in Ottawa provided the majority of 
financial support and we assisted as needed. He now has his own accommodation and has found 
full-time employment. We are very pleased at how well he has adjusted to life in Canada. 

In March 2017 we welcomed a single female from Syria who had been living in Lebanon. 
She has family members here in Ottawa who have offered assistance, while our group has 
provided the majority of financial support. She has been studying English and French, has a part 
time job and has an apartment in a building where other family members live. We hope she is 
able to find full-time employment by the time her year of sponsorship ends in March 2018. 

We have heard that our sponsorship application has been approved for a family of four 
from Syria now living in Lebanon. They have family members here in Ottawa who will be 
providing support and we look forward to their arrival sometime in 2018. 

2. Families from Afghanistan: 
In June we completed our sponsorship commitment for two related families with a total 

of 12 members who were from Afghanistan and had been living in Tajikistan. They received 
considerable support from their family members here in Ottawa as well as assistance from our 
group. They now have their own accommodation and most are working or attending school and 
all are doing well. 

We completed the sponsorship applications for two additional Afghan families related to 
those mentioned above, and have recently heard that their sponsorship applications have been 
approved. They will be receiving assistance from family members here in Ottawa, and we 
anticipate their arrival within the year. 

At the request of our Sponsorship Agreement Holder, the Anglican Diocese of Ottawa, 
we completed a refugee sponsorship application for a mother and daughter from Afghanistan 
living in Pakistan. Their lives had been threatened due to what is often termed an "honour
killing" situation. We recently received word that they should be arriving in Canada early in 
2018. They have family here in Ottawa who will provide the majority of support to them. We 
thank those who have provided furniture to assist this family. 

3. Family from Iran: 
We have been working on the sponsorship application of a family of three from Iran 

presently living in Turkey. This application has taken longer to complete than most, but we hope 
to submit it by late January 2018. We do not antiCipate their arrival in Canada until early to mid-
2019. This family has friends in the Iranian community here in Ottawa who will provide them 
with support in addition to the assistance we will give them. 
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Outreach/ Refusee Sponsorship Group 

4. Rwandan Siblings: 
This past year we completed our financial support to four siblings living in Rwanda who 

were orphaned during the Rwandan genocide in 1994. We have supported them for about 20 
years and are pleased that they have completed their education. 

5. Ride for Refuge: 
We participated in this annual bicycle fundraising event held in Kanata in October, from 

which we received about $2,300. We thank John Toft and Peter Bishop of Glen Cairn United for 
all of their assistance. 

6. Other Sponsorship Requests: 
In the past year we have received about a dozen requests for assistance in sponsoring 

refugees who are seeking to come to Canada. Due to the limited number of sponsorship spaces 
allocated by the Canadian government for 2018, we will only be able to sponsor one or two of 
these families, and plan to start working on those possible applications in the coming months. 

7. Financial Statement: 
A complete financial statement for 2017 is available upon request. In summary, we have 

net assets of about $30,000. This provides us with enough financial resources to be able to fulfill 
our present commitments and to support additional families we are planning to sponsor. We are 
grateful for the contributions we received from our member congregations in 2017. Your 
ongoing support is very important for us to be able to carry out our important work. 

We wish to thank everyone who continues to prayerfully support the work of the KSRSG 
including those who have attended KSRSG meetings on behalf of our member churches. 

Yours in Common Purpose, 

Rev. Grant Dillenbeck, 
Chair ofthe Kanata Stittsville Refugee Sponsorship Group. 
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PARISH SUPPORT GROUPS- OUTREACH 
Clothing/Goods Donations Ministry of St Thomas 

As we have said before, this Ministry is alive & well! We continue to receive many bags of 
clothing, toiletries, some shoes, kitchen ware, jewellery, babies & children's clothing& household 
goods such as bedding. Have delivered food to the Downtown Mission after some of the 
functions at StThomas. Material is welcomed by the sewing group at St. John's church in 
Richmond. They told us they make about 150 bags at Christmas time for the Missions 
downtown, & some of this delivery of cloth was perfect for their use. 

We have to be aware of the needs of the Missions. At the present time The Well is not accepting 
clothing as their storage facilities are overflowing; this is noted on their website in big red 
letters! We check the websites to update needs of the Missions. We have delivered to The St 
Vincent de Paul Mission after The Well advised us to. 

We do deliver quite lot of clothing to Hope Living, in Kanata, a house run by The Shepheds of 
Good Hope; they have been very pleased to receive our deliveries. It is comforting to know that 
they pass on anything they cannot use. We are told "nothing goes to waste". A large room has 
been transformed into a "Boutique" where the residents can choose articles that they would like 
to have. They too welcome food that is left over after a function at our church. 
Hope Living also say, they will take opened bottles of toiletries. 

We welcome donations of young children's & baby wear to take to Y ouville, 
they also accept egg cartons as eggs are delivered to them in bulk then they repack the eggs into 
donated cartons for their clients. We had a tour of Y ouville this past year. . . . It was very 
interesting, & incredible how many activities take place everyday. Y ouville has approx 60 
high school students in school right on the premises, with a classroom for Adult students also, & 
approx 55 babies to age 3yrs in Daycare every day. When we were at the tour we learned how 
much they appreciate our donations. 
We like to receive the McDonald's filled Coffee Cards that in tum are taken to downtown 
Missions. We also deliver to Centre 454, St Luke's Open Table & The Ottawa Mission when 
we are given suitable donations. 
We really stress the need for clothing to be in a good state, & definitely washed before donating. 
Please do not donate badly pilled clothing or goods from smoke filled areas ... such articles go 
straight in to the waste bin! 
We are giving to the less fortunate & we know they appreciate nice things too. 
Articles that are welcomed: Toiletries; shampoos, conditioners, soaps, feminine hygiene, baby 
products, razors, deodorants, toothpaste, toothbrushes, combs, brushes, Men and womens' & 
children's seasonal clothing including shoes. 
Towels .. .. .in good condition Bedding, in good repair & freshly washed 
Bottled beverages such as water, juice and soft drinks 
Mugs, bowls, plates, metal or plastic cutlery, games, playing cards 
Paper cups and plates & china ware 
New underwear, new socks 
Pet Food & Litter & any other goods you may feel are useful. 
Respectfully submitted, 

Lorna & Gary Graham 
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PARISH SUPPORT OUTREACH-STTHOMAS OPEN TABLE REPORT 

The Open table has had a very good year. We served about 850 meals with many new faces. Our 
regulars continue to support this ministry and enjoy the fellowship of the evening. Our December 
meal was the biggest we have had serving 120 guests besides our volunteers. We made a good 
profit and were able to help the Angel tree with certificates. 
We again supported the Refugee fund and have always cleared our costs for every meal. 
We have had excellent volunteers doing varied and tasty meals. Our helpers include the Parish 
Council, Cornerstone, Bonnie McNally and her daughter Victoria, Susan Boutilier and Dennis, 
Nicole and Ryan Dallaway and the committee. 
Many thanks to those of you who come and help serve, set-up (especially Gary) set the tables, 
Clear tables, run the dish washer, scrub pots and clear the hall when it's over. It could not 
happen without your help. 
We have had some people step back and would welcome any anyone wishing to join the team. 
We meet usually on Thursdays once a month for about an hour to plan and make sure we have 
everything ready to go. If you would like to cook a meal with help let us know. 

Respectfully submitted by, 

Judy Dallaway, Chair 

PARISH SUPPORT GROUP - Friends of the Family Reception Committee 

We have prepared for and served three funerals at the hall. We used a total of 30 loaves of 
sandwiches and 29 pans of squares. One funeral was just squares and drinks. Many volunteers 
helped by preparing sandwiches, squares and arranging trays and making drinks and serving to 
the grateful families. 
I have received beautiful notes following your efforts, to thank you for your kindness. 
Many thanks to all who help in this ministry at a time when families need to know that the parish 
family cares. Whether you set up tables, make calls, set tables, prepare the food, arrange trays, 
washed dishes, or clean up after the reception-it doesn't happen without all of you. 
The committee will be revising our lists and will be contacting you to determine if you want to 
be on the list and what you prefer to do. We try to contact different people each time. If you are 
not contacted by the end of February and want to help just give me, a call and you will be added 
to the list. 

Respectfully submitted by 

Judith Ann Dallaway, Chairperson. 
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fPARISH SUPPORT GROUP - Coffee Hour Report 

There are 30 volunteers participating on the Coffee Hour rotation schedule, following the 10:30 
a.m. service 1 0 months of the year. This works out to 15 teams of 2, which is not enough to fill 
the 40 Sundays per year. I request each volunteer to do 2 Sundays per 1 0 months, but several of 
us have had to do 4 due to a shortage of volunteers. 

Coffee Hour is a wonderful social ministry in our parish. If you can offer to be on Coffee Hour 2 
times a year, it would be most appreciated. 

Coffee, tea, milk, cream and juice are all provided. We ask you to bring a snack to share along 
with a friendly smile. Training will be provided. 

A special thank you to Lorna and Gary Graham for providing the milk and cream for the coffee 
hour and to all our host and hostesses, a big thank you for the amazing job that you are doing. 

Please contact the church office is you can assist in this important ministry. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Diane Clement, 
Coffee Hour Co-ordinator. 

PARISH SUPPORT GROUP - ACW REPORT 

Our first meeting of2017 started on a sad note as we took a minute to remember John Clarke. We 
miss his cheerful presence and his quirky sense of humour. He will remain in our memories as a 
good and kind person, and as someone you wanted to be with. 

We renewed our motions to donate moneys to the Memorial Fund, to Guest Speakers for 
Charities and for flowers once a year in memory of past members. 

We had an informative and interesting talk on the Managed Alcohol Program run by the 
Shepherds of Good Hope. We opened the meeting up to the Congregation and welcomed 17 
guests as well as the two speakers from the Shepherds. 

Another interesting speaker came from Value Village and that one culminated in the organisation 
by Diane of a "FunDrive" This was held in conjunction with our annual bake, garage & plant 
sale. We collected 1002lbs of soft goods, 1276lbs of hard goods and 744lbs of books. We 
received $251.30. 

In October we had two of our own as speakers - Mary Attwell and Pat Dalphy - with pictures 
and anecdotes from their trip to Iqaluit in 2016. We hope the members enjoyed the talk, we 
certainly enjoyed our trip! 

And in November Rev. Kerri Brennan shared with us her interesting stay in Jerusalem as part of 
her preparation for ordination into the Ministry She had some lovely pictures and painted a 
vivid picture oflife in the Holy Land today. 
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-PARISH SUPPORT GROUP - ACW REPOR'I Continued 

6 of our members attended the Diocesan ACW Annual Meeting at the Church of the Resurrection 
in Ottawa. Larry Langlois, a member of the Huron!Wendat Nation and an Elder at Centre 454 
gave a presentation "When Grandmothers Speak. .... ". 

As usual, several of our members made Palm Crosses and baked cookies to be distributed to 
shut-ins and to Parish members who have suffered the death of a loved one. 

We had a successful bake, garage and plant sale in May, along with the FunDrive. We presented 
Hilary Shouldice with a cheque for $142.00 for garden supplies. Congratulations Hilary, you are 
doing a wonderful job, the grounds are looking lovely. 

40 Canadian Church Calendars were ordered and all were sold. 

Many members worked hard at the November Bazaar, looking after the ACW "Tiny Treasures" 
table, serving the lunch, and working at many of the other tables, as well as baking, making soup, 
setting up and taking down. 

Our members also baked cookies for a cookie sale in December, the proceeds of which went to 
the Cornerstone Housing Project. The sum of$377.00 was collected and we sent $400.00 to 
Cornerstone. 

42 cards and a plant were sent to members and friends of the Parish on various occasions 
Thinking ofYou - 7; Birthday - 7; Get Well Soon- 2; Sympathy - 6; Easter - 8 + 1 plant; 
Christmas - 12. 

Our June Luncheon at Stittsville Golf Club and December Luncheon at ALE (Amberwood) 
were well attended and enjoyed. 

Sadly, three of our past members died this year, $50.00 for each was given to the Memorial Fund 
in memory of Doris Blow, Mary Kennedy and Joyce Kenyon. 

This is my last report as I retired in June after 1 0 years as ACW President. I have loved working 
with this group of beautiful women and I thank God always for giving me such a wonderful 
opportunity. I have not said 'Goodbye' as I am still attending meetings and helping in whatever 
way I can. Diane Clement has taken over my duties as President with Judy Dallaway acting as 
President during the winter months while Diane is in Florida. ACW is in good hands, and I am so 
pleased to know that two younger and more energetic women are now at the helm of our great organisation. 
Respectfully submitted 

Pat Dalphy 

P.S. I also want to say a heartfelt thank you to the Parishioners of St. Thomas. I have received 
nothing but friendship and support since I walked through the doors in 2005. I have made 
lifelong friends in this length of time and my heart is full with gratitude and love. I was 
completely overwhelmed and speechless at my surprise 80th birthday and farewell party in July. 
"Thank you" is inadequate for the joy and love I felt on that occasion. My move to Arnprior has 
been the right one, but a large part of my heart is still in Stittsville. Thank you all and God bless you. 
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PARISH SIJPPORT GROUp - ACW FINANCL\L REPORT 

A.C.W. FINANCIAL REPORT - JAN. 1 to DEC. 31, 2017 

REVENUE: 

Thank Offering-----------------------------------$ 145.40 
Talent Money-------------------------------------- 129.25 
Garage Sale (May)---------------------------------- 269.05 
Bake Sale (May)------------------------------------ 186.25 
Tiny Treasures Sale (Nov- Dec)----------------- 277.00 
Church Calendar Sale (2017)------------------- 85.00 
Church Calendar Sale (2018)------------------- 180.00 
Luncheon Reservations (June)----------------- 660.00 
Luncheon Reservations(Dec) ------------------- 792.00 
Value Village Project----------------------------- 251.30 
Cookie Sale (Cornerstone Project)------------- 377.00 
Donations ------------------------------------------- 65.00 
Birthday Box--------------------------------------- 16.20 
H.S.T. Rebate (2016) ------------------------------ 17.18 

TOTAL:------------------$ 3,450.63 
EXPENSES: 

Diocese of Ottawa (A.C.W.)--------------------$ 400.00 
Donations: St. Thomas General Funds------ 251.30 

Garden Funds--------------------- 142.00 
Main Street Community-------- 200.00 

Shepherds of Good Hope (Speaker)---------- 100.00 
St. Thomas Memorial Fund (3)--------------- 150.00 
Altar Guild - Flowers (ACW Memorial)---- 36.11 
Church Calendars (2018)----------------------- 160.00 
Gifts of Appreciation----------------------------- 79.31 
Luncheon (June) - By Town Catering 700.00 
Luncheon (Dec) - ALE Amberwood Rest.--- 768.00 
Refund of Luncheon Reserved ---------------- 24.00 
OUTREACH - Cornerstone Housing -------- 400.00 
Miscellaneous Supplies-------------------------- 42.58 
Greetings Cards------------------------------------ 9.01 

TOTAL:-----------------$ 3,462.31 

OPENING BALANCE--------------$ 882,27 
DEBIT 2017--------------------------- ( 11.68) 

BANK & BOOK BALANCE------$ 870.59 

Prepared & Submitted by: 

Enid Goodfellow, 
Treasurer 
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We continue to have a small but vibrant group of people who are part of this ministry at St 
Thomas church. These committed folks tend to the pastoral needs of our church community and 
beyond. 

Roy Baumgart and Tanya Drew continue their ministry as Spiritual Care Lay Visitors at the 
Queensway Carleton Hospital visiting Anglican patients on Mondays. 

Bonnie McNally, Sue Lomas and Liz Hall visit parishioners who are unable to attend church. 
These home visits provide a link between the church and our membership so that we do not lose 
contact with folks at vulnerable times and when they are no longer able to attend worship 
servtces. 

Bereavement support includes assisting at funeral liturgies, involvement with "Friends ofthe 
Family", sending cards and delivering remembrances at Christmas and Easter. 

The card secretary sends cards to those facing the stress of illness or care-giving and also to 
celebrate significant events. Please call the office or Tanya at 613-836-9944 

At St Thomas' there is an active Prayer Ministry coordinated by Eleanor and Roy Baumgart. 
There are 15 members in the Prayer team who daily pray for folks who have requested to be held 
before God in prayer. This team is also receiving requests from beyond our parish. The ministry 
is confidential and NUMBER OF PEOPLE are prayed for daily. Thank you to Roy and Eleanor 
for arranging meetings of the Prayer team bi-annually for spiritual exploration and growth. 

Prayer requests may be placed by calling Rev. Jane McCaig or the church secretary, Elizabeth 
Norris 613-836-5741 or Roy and Eleanor Baumgart at 831-4564 

Parishioners are asked to speak to Rev. McCaig if they have concerns or wish to know more 
about the Pastoral Care Ministry. 

Respectfully submitted by 

Rev. Jane McCaig 

30 



When you participate in the Grocery Certificate Program, you get to spend every cent of your 
money on groceries and the percentage to the church comes from the store, not you! It is still 
one of the easiest fundraising initiatives we currently have and I want to thank all of you who 
participate in it, buyers and sellers. The program would not work without all of you. 

Grocery certificates can be purchased after each church service or from the office during office 
hours. 

Attached is the Fund Statement ofProfit and Loss as at December 31,2017. 
(Books audited and statement generated by John Smith) 

Respectfully submitted, 

Brenda Miller 
Grocery Certificate Co-Ordinator 

St Thomas Anglican Church 
Grocery Certificate Fund 
Fund Statement of Profit and Loss as at December 31, 2017 

Discounts Earned 
Expenses: 
Bank charges 
Net Income 

Notes: 
Grocery Certificate Purchases in 201 7 were 

Discounts Earned 
Discounts Earned % 

St Thomas Anglican Church 
Grocery Certificate Fund 
Fund Balance as at December 31,2016 

Cash on Hand 
Bank 
Grocery certificates 

Change in Fund Balance 
Opening Fund Balance, January 1, 20 17 

Income 
Less: transfer to General fund 

2,061 
(3,500) 

Net Decrease in Retained Earnings 
Closing Fund Balance, December 31, 2016 

$2,122 

61 
$2.061 

$50,250 
2,122 

4.2% 
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$ 1,100 
$ 1,936 

$ 17.775 
$ 20.811 

$ 22.250 

(1,439) 
$20.811 



We had a wonderful year in 2017. We have an amazing congregation, always ready and willing 
to help. This year we had some very successful fundraising events, and many fellowship events. 
Over the year StThomas has had the following events, fundraisers, and fellowship activities: 

• A pancake dinner for Shrove Tuesday 
• A spring fish fry 
• A Parish picnic 
• An end of summer com roast 
• A wonderful fall roast beef dinner 
• The Stairwell Carollers Christmas concert 
• The ACW organized a Value Village fundraising clothing/textile drive 
• We have a wonderful team that organizes our Snowflake Bazaar 
• This Christmas season we had a new fundraiser the Poinsettia sale. Thank you to the 

Lorna and Gary Graham the organizers of this wonderful idea, it was a great success 
• Thank you to the organizers who provided hot chocolate for the Stittsville Parade of 

Lights, it was well received and enjoyed by many people, young and old 
• We have an amazing Open table team that continue to work hard to prepare great 

meals and offer fellowship to all those who attend and help with the monthly meals 
• We have dedicated individuals who arrange coffee hour following service on 

Sundays, your time and generosity is always appreciated. 
• At StThomas we are partnered with 2 local business which offer us rebates on 

purchases made at their stores: 
o Hurley's Restaurant in Stittsville, if you are going out for a meal at Hurley's 

make sure to give them the number 57 41, and a portion of you bill will come 
back to the church at the end of the year 

o Bridlewood Home Hardware in Kanata, when making purchases at this 
location please mention St Thomas Anglican Church in Stittsville and they 
will also give us a rebate on every dollar spent at the end of the year. 

In conclusion we have had a very successful year. I look forward to more events to come in 
2018. We have a few already planned please look to the upcoming People's Pulpit for more 
details for 2018. If you have an idea or would like to run a fundraiser or fellowship event please 
contact me at nrdallaway@gmail.com or 613-298-6670. 

Respectfully submitted by 

Nicole Dallaway- your Fundraising/Fellowship Chair 
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Snowflake Bazaar and Luncheon Report 201 i. 

Wow!! Another highly successful Snowflake Bazaar and Luncheon, thanks to the tireless efforts 
ofmany, many St. Thomas-ites!! 

The weather outside was dreadful to say the least, with freezing rain beginning shortly after we 
opened our doors. As a result, crowds thinned sooner than would normally have happened. It 
affected our bottom line but not significantly, with $5699.65 raised, down only slightly from 
previous years. 

Fortunately, we decided this year to begin an hour earlier. Since we now set up the tables and 
decorate the hall on Thursday, leaving all day Friday to organize the items, we were ready to go 
first thing Saturday morning. 

Once again we chose to hold the Bazaar the third Saturday ofNovember, corresponding with 
several other bazaars in the area. People seem to like the idea of 'Bazaar-hopping' and, in spite of 
the competition, our luncheon was every bit as successful as in previous years. 

We also continued to showcase some of our St. Thomas ministries. This year we chose God's 
Garden, Open Table, EFM, and our up-coming Alpha. It's a great opportunity to give the 
community an idea of life in our church. 

It is awesome to witness how our StThomas family comes together to support our annual Bazaar 
and Luncheon. Many, many thanks to the myriad of folk who contributed by donating items, 
setting up and decorating, baking, making and wrapping Christmas puddings, arranging and 
manning the tables, making soup or working in the kitchen or serving at the luncheon, selling 
luncheon tickets, arranging the displays of St Thomas ministries, inviting friends, and helping 
with the tear down. It truly is a 'full-parish' ministry!! 

Respectfully submitted, 

Bonnie McNally and Judy Dallaway 
Bazaar and Luncheon Co-chairs 
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The annual meeting was held May 2, 2017 with Brad Faulkner, Michael Whalen, Pat Dalphy and 
Gwelda O'Shaughnessy in attendance. Gwelda presented the newly updated maps of the 
cemetery which she worked on during the winter. We now have updated maps of the old section, 
new section and urn garden. 

This year we had Robert Cavanagh do spring mulching ofleaves and pick up of twigs and 
branches prior to our spring cleanup day scheduled for May 27th, making our job somewhat 
easier. A few graves were sinking and these were filled in and leveled during the cleanup. 
Michael once again uncovered the plot markers in the new section of the cemetery along with an 
area around them with weed killer so they will not become overgrown again. Gwelda painted the 
urns at the front landscaping with Tremclad paint before purchasing the flower baskets for them 
at the Parkdale Market. Robert once again provided excellent grass cutting services during 
spring, summer and fall. We are still waiting for an estimate from Arthur at Grace Monuments 
for monuments in need of repair where there are no living family members. 

The memorial service was held on June 11th and Cornerstone once again graciously provided 
their excellent music for the service. 

Six (6) inumments of ashes took place during 2017: 

Edward Cordukes - May 13 

Raymond Bell - May 14 

Mary Madeleine Durling - June 26 

Ryan Curtis Double - October 1st 

John Iner Clarke - November 4 

Tracy Jennifer O'Shaughnessy - December 8. 

Two regular lots and one urn garden lot were purchased and one monument and one pre-need urn 
garden marker were purchased. 

Respectfully submitted 
Gwelda 0' Shaughnessy 
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FINANCIAL REPORT FOR 2017 
CEMETERY 

REVENUE/INCOME 

Donations 
Sale of Lots 
Bank/HST/TD Trust Interest 
Opening and Closing graves 
Monument Fees 

TOTAL REVENUE 

EXPENDITURES 

TD Trust 
Labour and Maintenance 
Digging, marking, closing 
Advertise Memorial Service 
Flowers for urns and new map supplies 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

NET GAIN 

CHANGE IN FINANCIAL PICTURE 

Opening Balance 
Net Gain 
Closing Balance 

GIC- Maturity (February 23, 2018) Value 

TOTAL CEMETERY ASSETS 

Respectfully submitted 

Gwelda O'Shaughnessy 
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2,330.00 
1,900.00 

984.79 
1,500.00 

150.00 

6,864.79 

910.00 
2,055.00 
1,050.00 

56.52 
98.00 

4,169.52 

2,695.27 

21,708.56 
2,695.27 

24,403.83 

11,325.99 

35,729.82 



Ministry and Mandate 
Facilities Ministry mandate is to protect the integrity of the Church structure and property, the health and 

safety of all users and to make it aesthetically pleasing and spiritually uplifting for all who may enter. Our 

mandate includes identifying, implementing and reporting on all operating maintenance and capital 

improvements for our Parish Church. Corporation and Parish Council members and Vestry, as required, are 

also partners in this endeavor. 

First off, I wish to thank those parishioners who volunteered their time and skills assisting me. Our 
Facilities ministry utilized the skills of parishioners for an estimated total of 420 volunteer hours last year to 
complete all projects, maintenance activities and routine tasks. Your assistance saved the Church a lot of 
money by not having to hire or contract out for our facility requirements. 

There were many volunteers who assisted us in 2017 and I appreciate all who served. I try to keep records 
of all the effort that is put forth but it became increasingly harder to do that because many people stepped 
up on their own to address issues in and around the Church. 

• Hugh and Luke O'Toole managed the lawn cutting responsibilities for the entire summer. 
• Pat McNally and Gary Graham attended to so many activities I couldn't keep track of them all. 
• Bob Lomas led the team that painted the Church Hall and he also tended to many other tasks. 
• Hilary Shouldice and Pam Hazen managed all our gardens and got assistance from a number of 

parishioners throughout the year. They also arranged the fall cleanup of the leaves. 
• In the spring Bob Lomas led the team for the cleanup. 
• Gary Graham for taking care of the issues we had with the projection system. 
• Liz Norris for managing the contracts Church cleaning, for snow removal, and for our elevator, 

furnace and air conditioner maintenance. 
• Many other unnamed volunteers who helped out as much as you did ... for your efforts I am truly 

grateful. 

After twelve years this was my last year managing the Facilities ministry. Besides the normal operating 
responsibilities of addressing electrical, plumbing and mechanical issues in the Church, with the assistance 
of many parishioners over the years we delivered some large capital projects such as the new roof, the new 
sign and the new cross which sits atop the Belfry Tower. We also delivered three new high energy efficient 
furnaces, a second air conditioner, and delivered two formal lighting projects that reduced our energy 
consumption. We changed our alarm system to a newer system, rekeyed the entire lock system in the 
Church to a one-key system, conducted two formal inventories of all the Church contents, and we wrote 
procedures for Church lock-up and Church emergencies. We also wrote two important business cases for 
Corporation: Belfry Tower Cell Phone business case (which got approved by the Diocese but the vendor 
Public Mobile pulled out); and the elevator upgrade business case. 

I am thankful to all of you who either supported this ministry directly through offering your time or by 
offering financial support to make all things possible that we undertook. 

Thanks again to all of you for your assistance and I apologize if I missed anyone. 

Respectfully submitted by, 

Bob McCaig 
Facilities Chairperson 
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FACILITIES -CHURCH GARDEN 

The spring started with a very large cleanup in the gardens and grounds. Racking, pruning and 
removing whole garden bed. We completely redid most of the other beds with new soil and 
plants. Gravel was applied between the long bed and the church to define the bed and cut down 
on weeds. 

With the generosity of the ACW and their plant sale we were able to replace old shrubs and add 
new ones and perennials. 

Later in the season there was extensive pruning of the large trees to make the Church more 
visible from the street and, also, to make mowing ofthe grass easier. 

There was another cleanup in the fall with raking and bagging of leaves. Fifty-six bags of leaves 
were dragged to the curb. 

We are "Extremely " grateful for all the helpers to came and worked on the Gardens and we 
welcome anyone who can spare a few hours to help us in the coming spring and summer. 

Respectfully submitted by 

Hilary and Pam 

37 



!FINANCIAL REVIEW REPORT Year 2017 

January 21, 201i 

Financial Review Report 

We are pleased to submit this report regarding the financial review activities performed on the financial 

records of St. Thomas Anglican Church, for the year ending December 31, 2017. 

This financial review is an examination of the parish's financial records to determine their accuracy. We 
have reviewed a significant sample from the General Fund records, examining evidence supporting the 
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. We have also conducted a comprehensive audit of 
all other funds operating under the responsibility of St. Thomas Anglican Church. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above fairly present the results of operation and the 

overall financial position of St. Thomas Anglican Church for the year ended December 31, 2017. There is 

nothing that has come to our attention t hat causes us to believe that these financial statements are not, 

in all material respects, in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles. 

Thanks to all those involved in the financial administration of St. Thomas. 

Church Financial Reviewers 
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BOOKKEEPER'S REPORT- for the year ending December 31,2017 

On behalf of Corporation members, I am pleased to submit the audited financial reports for St. 
Thomas for the year ending December 31, 2017 and the proposed Budget for 2018. 

Here are the highlights for the year ending 2017: 
• The year ended with a deficit of $7,857 compared to the breakeven budget. 
• We fully met all Diocesan Commitments for the year. 
• $23,448 (13.4%) of all incomes including flow-through incomes was distributed to Parish 

Outreach and Mission initiatives throughout the year. This amount compares to 13.2% 
donated during 2016. 

• All of the projects were 100% funded and therefore did not affect the General Operating 
surplus. 

• Total General Fund Incomes were 1.6% higher than budgeted due primarily to higher 
Offerings, which were 3.0% higher than received in 2016. 

• Total General Fund Expenses were $10,849 (5.9%) higher than budgeted due primarily 
to higher snow removal costs, higher Parish Outreach donations and higher Church 
Property costs; they were also $9,122 ( 4.9%) higher than in 2016 for the same reasons. 

St. Thomas expenditures for the year were used as follows(% of Total Expenditures): 

2017 
% 

Diocesan Commitments 66 
Staff and Office Expenses 18 
Church Property 9 
Parish & Outreach Programs 6 
Other Expenses 1 

2016 
% 

68 

17 
9 
5 
1 

Attached are the financial statements for St. 
Thomas for the year ending 2017. 

Parish finances are managed well at St. 
Thomas with excellent financial controls in 
place. Parish Council reviews the financials on 
a monthly basis and decisions requiring 
additional advice or authorization are directed 
to Corporation members. 

My bookkeeping duties are made easier thanks to the outstanding record-keeping by Bob 
Lomas, our Envelope Secretary, by Lyle Stevenson and our Counter's Team and by Liz Norris 
who administers all payments, contracts and rental agreements for the Church. I also thank 
John Smith and Lyle Stevenson in their roles as Financial Reviewers. I also appreciate all the 
work done by Brenda Miller who keeps the records for the Grocery Fund accurately. Lastly, I 
thank our Corporation and Parish Council members for their guidance and support throughout 
the year. 

After 12 years of providing financial advice and counsel to this parish it is time to say goodbye. I 
thank all the Corporation and Parish Council members over the years who provided advice and 
guidance. 

If you have any comments or suggestions that would provide additional insights, comparative 
analysis and/or other areas that would improve this communication to you, please provide them 
to the new Treasurer. 

Respectfully submitted by, 

~Me~ 
Chartered Professional Accountant, Certified Management Accountant 
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St. 'Thomas Jllngfican Cliurcfz 
High Level Consolidated Income & Expense Statement 

Year Ended: December 31, 2017 

2017- Actual 2017- Budget 

GENERAL FUND INCOMES 

GENERAL FUND SURPLUS I DEFICIT 

OTHER FUND ITEMS 

CONSOLIDATED SURPLUS I DEFICIT 
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St. Tliomas Jllnglican Cfiurcli 
Detailed Consolidated Income & Expense Statement 

Year Ended: December 31, 2017 

2017 - Actual 2017- Budget 

GENERAL FUND INCOMES 
OFFERINGS/BEQUESTS (Note 2) 

Bequests Offerinq 
Cemetery Fund Offering (Note 3) 

Christmas Offerinq 
Continqency Fund Offering (Note 4) 

Easter Offerino 
Food Bank Offerinq (Note 5) 

Improvement Fund Offering (Note 6) 

Initial Offerinq 
Memorial Fund Offering 
150th Anniversary Special Offerino (Note 7) 

Open Offerinq 
Other Offerings (Note 8) 

Outreach Flowthrouqh Donations (Note 5) 

PAR & Regular Envelope Offering 
PWRDF Offerinq (Note 5) 

Rector's Discretionary Fund (Note 9) 

Refuqee Offerino (Note 5) 

Special Project Offerinq (Note 10) 

Thanksgiving Offering 
Worship & Liturqy Offerinq 

Subtotal Offerings/Bequests 

INVESTMENT INCOME 
CTF- Bequest #2587 Interest (Note 11) 

CTF- Bequest #2658 Interest (Note 12) 

CTF- Rectory #4040 Interest (Note 13) 

GIC Interest (Note 14) 

Subtotal Investment Income 

FUNDRAISING INCOME 
Garden Plant Sales (Note 15) 

Grocery Certificates (Note 16) 

Parish Fundraisinq (Net) (Note 17) 

Subtotal Fundraising Income 

OTHER ASSESSED INCOME 
Other Expenses Recovered (Note 18) 

Other Miscellaneous (Note 19) 

Peoples' Pulpit Ads 
W edding/FuneraVReception 

Subtotal Other Assessed Income 

NET ASSESSED INCOME 
Facilities Cost Recovery 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

41 

- $ - $ 
1,813 900 
4,285 4,255 

400 -
2,675 2,500 
2,004 -

- -
99 170 

1,150 -
- -

2,712 4,118 
989 600 
968 -

132,763 134,200 
3,870 3,659 

275 -
- -
- -

2,475 1,474 
134 135 

156,612 $ 152,011 $ 

- $ - $ 
- -

2,465 2,394 
175 155 

2,640 $ 2,549 $ 

- $ - $ 
3,500 3,500 

10,635 12,500 
14,135 $ 16,000 $ 

134 $ 75 $ 
- 1,400 

66 600 
1,550 1,200 
1,750 $ 3,275 $ 

5,6491 $ 8,381 I $ 

2016 - Actual 

-
1,400 
3,920 

-
2,385 

410 
-

166 
389 

2,785 
4,038 

350 
-

133,541 
3,867 

520 
320 

-
1,445 

134 
155,670 

-
-

2,394 
100 

2,494 

5 
3,500 

10,308 
13,813 

66 
1,399 

224 
875 

2,564 

8,2181 



St. Tliomas fllnglican Cliurdi 
Detailed Consolidated Income & Expense Statement 

Year Ended: December 31, 2017 

2017 - Actual 2017- Budget 
GENERAL FUND INCOMES Continued 

NON-ASSESSED INCOME 
150th Fund Incomes (Note 20) $ - $ -
Alpha Fund Incomes - -
Diocesan Support Grant (Note 21) - -
GIFT Fund Offering (50% to Parish) (Note 22) 584 5,000 
Miscellaneous Non-Assessed Income (Note 23) 120 2,400 
. Open Table Fund Meal Offerings (Note 24) 4,247 4,500 

Subtotal Non-Assessed Income $ 4,951 $ 11,900 

2016 - Actual 

$ 4,716 
-

2,000 
16,529 

1,351 
4,342 

$ 28,938 

TOTAL INCOMES BEFORE TRANSFERS 1ss 737 I $ I 1941161$ I 211,697 I 
TRANSFERS IN FROM OTHER FUNDS (Note 25) 

Transfer in from Contingency Fund $ - $ - $ -
Transfer in from Gift Fund 5,922 2,400 8,011 
Transfer in from Improvement Fund - - -
Transfer in from Memorial Fund - - -
Transfer in from Rector's Disc. Fund - - 500 
Transfer in from Open Table Fund 6,625 690 1,674 

Subtotal Transfers In From Other Funds $ 12,547 $ 3,090 $ 10,185 

TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS (Note 26) 

Contingency Fund (10% Recovery) (Note 27) $ - $ - $ (1) 
Transfer to 150th Fund - - (4,716) 
Transfer to Alpha Fund - - -
Transfer to Cemetery Fund (1,813) (900) (1,400) 
Transfer to Contingency Fund (400) - -
Transfer to Gift Fund (584) (5,000) (16,529) 
Transfer to Improvement Fund - - -
Transfer to Memorial Fund (1, 150) - (389) 
Transfer to Open Table Fund- Incomes (4,247) (4,500) (4,342) 
Transfer to Open Table Fund- GIC Interest (175) (155) (100) 
Transfer to Rector's Discretionary Fund (275) - (20) 

Subtotal Transfers to Other Funds $ (8,644) $ (10,555) $ (27,497) 

TOTAL GENERAL FUND INCOMES $ 189,640 $ 186,651 $ 194,385 
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St. Tliomas YLnglican Cliurcft 
Detailed Consolidated Income & Expense Statement 

Year Ended: December 31, 2017 

2017 - Budget 

GENERAL FUND EXPENSES 
DIOCESAN COMMITMENTS 

ECOPS (Note 29) $ 96,126 $ 97,993 
Fair Share (Note 30) 27,451 27,451 
Insurance 4,249 4,249 

Subtotal Diocesan Commitments $ 127,826 $ 129,693 

STAFF 
Caretaker $ 4,987 $ 4,410 
Choir Director 4,800 -
Employer Share of CPP/EI 306 358 
Organist 6,625 6,625 
Replacement Priests 2,520 856 
Secretary 12,310 12,237 
Treasurer/Bookkeeper 1,500 1,500 

Subtotal Staff $ 33,048 $ 25,986 

OFFICE/COMPUTER SUPPLIES 
Office & Computer Equipment $ 72 $ 100 
Supplies, Postage, Bulletin 835 1,000 
Photocopy Services 3,239 2,988 

Subtotal Office/Computer Supplies $ 4,146 $ 4,088 

UTILITIES 
Gas $ 2,731 $ 2,440 
Hydro 2,801 3,458 
I nternet/Ernai I 798 801 
Security System 224 228 
Telephone 2,234 2,096 
Water 1,287 914 

Subtotal Utilities $ 10,075 $ 9,937 

CHURCH PROPERTY 
Cleaner's Supplies $ 234 $ 500 
Elevator 814 600 
Furnace & NC Maintenance Plans 898 704 
Normal Maintenance & Repair 1,772 1,465 
Piano Tuning 379 248 
Snow Removal & Grass Cutting 4,062 3,338 

Subtotal Church Property $ 8,159 $ 6,855 

PARISH OUTREACH 
Food Bank $ 2,004 $ -
Outreach 1,073 -
PWRDF 3,870 3,659 
RefuQee - -

Subtotal Parish Outreach $ 6,947 $ 3,659 
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$ 93,738 
29,249 
4,249 

$ 127,236 

$ 4,448 

-
312 

6,595 
1,480 

12,120 
1,500 

$ 26,455 

$ 436 
989 

3,064 
$ 4,489 

$ 2,393 
3,390 

785 
224 

2,055 
948 

$ 9,795 

$ 605 
674 
690 
699 
124 

3,178 
$ 5,970 

$ 909 
1,735 
4,367 
1,450 

$ 8,461 



St. Tfiomas J7Lnglican Cliurcfi 
Detailed Consolidated Income & Expense Statement 

Year Ended: December 31, 2017 

: ... 
GENERAL FUND EXPENSES Continued 

PARISH PROGRAMS 
Adult Education $ 330 $ 200 
Alpha Fund - -
God's Garden (Church School) 404 300 
Music - Licences 403 373 
Music - Senior Choir - 50 
Open Table Fund Expenses (Note 24) 2,876 4,300 
Parish Picnic 51 40 
Pastoral Care 35 100 
Reception/Catering 110 100 
Stewardship 88 275 
Worship & Liturgy 491 400 

Subtotal Parish Programs $ 4,788 $ 6,138 

OTHER EXPENSES 
150th Fund Expenses (Note 20) $ - $ -
Advertising 1,067 300 
Altar Guild Supplies 300 400 
Bank Charges 492 500 
Communications 95 100 
Fellovvship & Hospitality 234 375 
Kitchen Committee 47 20 
Memorial Fund Expenses - -
Miscellaneous Expense - -
Peoples' Pulpit 464 200 
Rector Discretionary Expense 250 -
Synod 288 300 

Subtotal Other Expenses $ 3,237 $ 2,195 

2016 - Actual 

$ -
-

187 
373 

-
4,317 

-
-

97 
262 
332 

$ 5,568 

$ 4,985 
274 
300 
493 
95 

366 
54 

227 
-

451 
-

288 
$ 7,533 

TOTAL EXPENSES BEFORE TRANSFERS I$ 198 22s I $ ! 188 551 I $ ! 19s so1 I ! 

TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS (Note 28) 

Transfer to 150th Fund $ - $ - $ (4,985} 
Transfer to Alpha Fund - - -
Transfer to Contingency Fund - - -
Transfer to Gift Fund - - -
Transfer to Memorial Fund - - (227} 
Transfer to Open Table Fund (2,876} (4,300} (4,317} 
Transfer to Rector's Discretionary Fund (250) - -

Subtotal Transfers to Other Funds $ (3, 126) $ (4,300) $ (9,529) 

TOTAL GENERAL FUND EXPENSES $ 195,100 $ 184,251 $ 185,978 

GENERAL FUND SURPLUS I (DEFICIT) $ 5,460 $ 2,400 $ 8,407 
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St. ?:fwmas 9,.ngfican Cliurcfz 
Detailed Consolidated Income & Expense Statement 

Year Ended: December 31, 2017 

2017- Budget 

OTHER FUND ITEMS 
PROJECT EXPENSES (Note 31) 

New Lawnmower $ - $ -
Chairs for Church Hall - -
Visioning Day Luncheon - -
Navtivity Scene Wood - -
Photo Directory Costs - -
Donation to PWRDF for 150th Anniversay - -
EFM Costs for Parishioner - -
Artwork Purchase for 150th Anniversary - -
Outreach Nicaragua Trip 2016 - -
Altar Guild Special Payment - -
Upgrade Three Bathrooms - 2,400 
Buy-A-Light Energy Reduction (Net Cost) 793 -
Painting Church Hall 337 -
Wood for Parade Float 81 -
Music for Senior Choir 705 -
Projector Repairs 481 -

Subtotal Project Expenses $ 2,397 $ 2,400 

CONSOLIDATED SURPLUS I DEFICIT $ 7,857 
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$ 384 
4,228 

100 
137 
155 
500 
250 
841 

1,500 
300 

-
-
-
-
-
-

$ 8,395 



St. 'Ifwmas J!Lngfican Cliurcfz 
Comparative Balance Sheet (Consolidated) 

As at: December 31, 2017 

ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Petty Cash 
Grocery Certificate Funds for Deposit 
St Thomas Bank Account 
Grocery Certificate Bank Account 
Grocery Certificates Inventory 

Subtotal Current Assets 

INVESTMENTS 
GICs (Note 14) 

CTF #2587 Bequest (Note 11) 

CTF #2658 Bequest (Note 12) 

CTF #4040 Rectory (Note 13) 

Subtotal Investments 

OTHER ASSETS 
Other Accounts Receivable (Note 32) 

HST Receivable (Note 33) 

Prepaid Project Expenditures (Note 34) 

Subtotal Other Assets 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES 
CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Accounts Payable (Note 35) 

Payroll Deductions Payable 
Subtotal Current Liabilities 

FUND BALANCES 
Alpha Fund 
Asset Fund 

(Note 36) 

Church Improvement Fund (Note 6) 

Contingency Fund (Note 4) 

General Fund 
Gl FT Fund (Note 22) 

Grocery Certificate Fund 
Jumpin' Spirits Fund 
Memorial Fund 
150th Fund (Note 20) 

Open Table Fund (Note 24) 

Rector's Discretionary Fund (Note 9) 

Subtotal Fund Balances 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

December 31 
2017 

$ 50.00 
1,100.00 

39,400.51 
1,936.00 

17,775.00 
$ 60,261.51 

$ 10,799.69 
503.23 

2,557.41 
85,931.20 

$ 99,791.53 

$ 2,389.83 
933.36 

74.21 
$ 3,397.40 

i_-163,450.44 

$ 1,700.36 

$ 1,700.36 

$ 136.52 
88,991.84 

1,834.88 
1,313.97 

(2,721.27) 
38,850.91 
20,811.00 

5,429.14 

6,429.16 
673.93 

$ 161,750.08 
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December 31 
2016 

$ 50.00 
1,350.00 

57,585.80 
8,450.00 

12,450.00 
$ 79,885.80 

$ 10,624.96 
486.11 

2,482.23 
85,931.20 

$ 99,524.50 

$ 
1,326.93 

74.21 
$ 1,401.14 

-~-~ ~-0' 81_ 1_:_ 4_4 

$ 223.21 

$ 223.21 

$ 136.52 
88,899.54 

1,834.88 
913.97 

5,125.65 
44,981.67 
22,250.00 

10.00 
4,279.14 

11,507.93 
648.93 

$ 180,588.23 

December 31 
2015 

$ 50.00 
1,750.00 

47,192.09 
6,214.00 

14,500.00 
$ 69,706.09 

$ 10,524.82 
469.99 

2,409.19 
85,931.20 

$ 99,335.20 

$ 250.00 
3,448.39 

74.21 
$ 3,772.60 

$ 170.67 

$ 170.67 

$ 209.51 
88,810.38 

934.88 
912.69 

5,114.11 
36,732.49 
22,464.00 

10.00 
4,117.12 

755.99 
11,745.34 

836.71 
$ 172, 643. 22 

$ 172,813.89 



Opening balance as at January 1, 2017 

St. tTftomas !Angfican Cfiurcfi 
Balance Sheet Funds - Detail 

Year Ended: December 31, 2017 

e uest Fund (Note 11 

Add: Change in Book Value: 2017 dividend cheque reinvested 
Closing balance as at December 31, 2017 (Market value= $562.49) 

Opening balance as at January 1, 2017 
Add: Change in Book Value: 2017 dividend cheque reinvested 
Closing balance as at December 31, 2017 (Market value= $2,468.58) 

Note 12 

• 

ector Fund (Note 
13 -Opening balance as at January 1, 2017 

Add: Change in Book Value: 2017 dividends used by Diocese to offset ECOPS ($2,465.00) 
Closing balance as at December 31, 2017 (Market value= $80,913.71) 

BALANCE SHEET FUNDS Details 

$ 486.11 
17.12 

$ 503.23 

$ 2,482.23 
75.18 

$ 2,557.41 

$ 85,931.20 

$ 85,931.20 

AI ha Fund Grocer Certificates Fund (Note 16) 

Balance as at January 1, 2017 
Add: Offerings 
Less: 
Balance as at December 31, 2017 

Contingency Fund (Note 4) 

Balance as at January 1, 2017 
Add: Offerings 
Add: 10% of Surplus 
Less: 
Balance as at December 31, 2017 

Memorial Fund 
Balance as at January 1, 2017 
Add: Offerings 
Less: 
Balance as at December 31, 2017 

$ 136.52 

$ 136.52 

$ 913.97 
400.00 

$ 1,313.97 

$ 4,279.14 
1,150.00 

$ 5,429.14 

Church lm rovement Fund (Note 6) 

Balance as at January 1, 2017 
Add: Offerings 
Balance as at December 31 , 2017 

GIFT Fund (Note 22) 

Balance as at January 1, 2017 
Add: 50% of 2016 offerings 
Less: Choir Director 
Less: Painting Church Hall 
Less: Wood for Parade Float 
Less: Music for Senior Choir 
Less: Buy-A-Light (Net Cost) 
Balance as at December 31, 2017 

$ 1,834.88 

$ 1,834.88 

$ 44,981.67 
584.17 

(4,800.00) 
(336.83) 

(80.67) 
(704.92) 
(792.51) 

$ 38,850.91 
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Balance as at January 1, 2017 
Add: Certificate purchases 
Less: Cheques issued 
Less: Bank charges & Adj. 

Less: Transfer to General Fund 
Balance as at December 31, 2017 

** Discounts earned in 2017 

0 en Table Fund (Note 24) 

Balance as at January 1, 2017 

Add: Offerings 
Add: GIC interest income 
Less: Meal & program expenditures 
Less: Transfer to General Fund 
Less: 10% offerings to General Fund 
Less: $20/mo. Coffee/Supplies charge 

Balance as at December 31, 2017 

$ 22,250.00 
50,250.00 

(48, 127.51) 
(61.49) 

(3,500.00) 
$ 20,811.00 

$ 2,122.00 

$ 11,507.93 

4,247.25 
174.72 

(2,876.02) 
(6,000.00) 

(424.73) 
(200.00) 

$ 6,429.15 

Rector's Discretionar Fund (Note 9) 

Balance as at January 1 , 2017 
Add: Offerings 

Less: Miscellanous Discretionary 
Balance as at December 31, 2017 

Jum in' S irits Fund 
Balance as at January 1, 2017 
Less: Transfer to General Fund 
Balance as at December 31, 2017 

$ 648.93 
250.00 

(225.00) 
$ 673.93 

$ 

$ 

10.00 
(10.00) 



St. 'Ifwmas YLnglican Cliurcli 
Statement of Cash Flows 

Year Ended: December 31, 2017 

2017 

0 enin Balance as at Januar 1 $ 180,811.44 

Receipts from congregation $ 173,015.00 
Receipts from other sources 12,722.00 
Transfers to General Fund from Other Funds 12,547.00 
Transfers to Other Funds from General Fund (8,644.00) 
Payments to suppliers, staff, Diocese & Outreach $ {207,001.00} 

Closing balance as at December 31 $ - 163,4?__Q_.44 
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2016 2015 

$ 172,813.89 $ 167,728.14 

$ 189,495.00 $ 197,059.00 
22,202.00 17,642.00 
10,185.00 2,397.00 

(27,497.00) (25,427.00) 
$ {186,387.45} $ {186, 585. 25} 

$ 180,811.44 $ 172,813.89 
- ~ 



St. 'l!iottws .9lngfican Cfutrdi 
Notes to Financial Statements 

Year Ended: December 31, 2017 

Accounting for St. Thomas is done using the Modified Cash Basis. This means that accounting transactions 
are recorded in the year they are received and the year they are paid. Some adjustments, called accruals, 
are made for items that are certain and that pertain to the year being reported on. For example, in these 
reports, an accrual was made to Accounts Payable to record HST refunds claimed on behalf of the Altar 
Guild, the ACW and the Cemetery Corporation which won't be paid to the organizations until the new year. 

r-
The Offerings received are recorded in various accounts for statistical and Diocesan reporting purposes. 
Most of the Offerings received are used in the general operations of the Church and Parish. Others are 
called flow-through because they are specifically reserved for other organizations or reserved Funds within 
St. Thomas. During 2017 there were 128 Identifiable Givers in St. Thomas compared to 133 in 2016, 137 in 
2015 and 146 in 2013. 

An Identifiable Giver, as defined by the Diocese, is a person or family who at year end is on the Parish list, 
and who has received from the Church, an income tax receipt for offerings during the year of $25 or more. 
Individual members of families who receive separate tax receipts will be counted separately. Persons not on 
the Parish list who make donations to the Church and receive tax receipts are not counted. 

Of the total128 Identifiable Givers in 2017, their average annual offering was $1,156. This compares to 
$1,040 in 2016, $1 ,020 in 2015, $1,064 in 2014 and $1 ,027 in 2013. These statistics do not include offerings 
to the GIFT program. 72 parishioners (identified donors) used offering envelopes during 2017 compared to 
72 in 2016, 75 in 2015 and 84 in 2014 and 2013. 56 parishioners used PAR for their offerings in 2017 
compared to 61 in 2016, 62 in 2015, 60 in 2014 and 62 in 2013. Total tax receipts for 2017 from Identified 
Givers from all forms of offerings (excluding cash offerings) were $147,944 compared to $154,410 in 2016, 
$153,457 in 2015, $145,957 in 2014 and $150,014 in 2013. These figures include donations to the Flower 
Fund for which the accounting is recorded in the Altar Guild records. 

The table below provides an overview of the offerings distribution at St. Thomas for the 2017 year. 

Distribution b 11 # of Offerors Distribution by $ Offerings 
Annual Givings # % $ % 

+ $3,000 11 8 51 ,510 35 
$2,000-$2,999 9 7 21,560 14 
$1 ,500 - $1 ,999 13 10 21,571 15 
$1 ,000 - $1 ,499 16 13 18,918 13 

$500-$999 34 27 24.242 16 
$250-$499 17 13 6,703 5 
$25-$249 28 22 3,440 2 

*Totals* 133 100 147,944 100 

r-
Cemetery Fund Offerings are a flow-through to the St. Thomas Cemetery Corporation, a separate, legal 
entity from the Church. 

fl'lilr::r. 

The Contingency Fund is a fund set up to cover unexpected and/or emergency-type expenditures. 

fl'Cil{:Jio") 

Food Bank, PWRDF and Refugee Offerings are offerings that are paid out 1 00% to the organizations 
supported by St. Thomas. 

tm!m 
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The Improvement Fund was set up to record offerings specifically made towards major Church projects. 

Other Offerings include miscellaneous tax receiptable unsolicited offerings made by parishioners for small 
projects or to offset other unexpected expenditures. 

The Rector's Discretionary Fund reserves offerings made to St. Thomas specifically ear-marked for the 
Rector to use as required. This Fund allows the Incumbent to respond to a variety of immediate and often 
confidential needs of individuals or causes. 

CTF #2587 Isabel Hodgins Bequest Fund is a consolidated trust fund managed for St. Thomas by the 
Diocese of Ottawa. The book value of this fund on December 31, 2017 was $503.23 and the market value 
was $562.49. The amount remaining represents accumulated dividends earned on this fund. During 2017 
dividends were earned at the rate of $0.68 per unit owned. 

CTF #2658 Warner Eakins Bequest Fund is a consolidated trust fund managed for St. Thomas by the 
Diocese of Ottawa. The book value of this fund on December 31,2017 was $2,557.41 and the market value 
was $2,468.58. The amount remaining invested represents principal plus accumulated dividends earned on 
this fund. During 2017 dividends were earned at the rate of $0.68 per unit owned. 

CTF #4040 Rectory Fund is a consolidated trust fund managed for St. Thomas by the Diocese of Ottawa. 
The book value of this fund on December 31, 2017 was $85,931.20 and the market value was $80,913.71. 
The Diocese keeps the dividends earned from this fund to offset the annual cost of Equalized Cost of 
Priestly Services (ECOPS). Dividends earned in 2017 were $2,465.00. During 2017 dividends were earned 
at the rate of $0.68 per unit owned. 

St. Thomas holds a GIG in the amount of $10,799.69. $174.72 in interest was earned in 2017 and credited 
to the Open Table Fund. The GIG matured in January 2018 and was renewed. 

Proceeds from the Garden Plant Sales trad went to the General Fund but this did not occur in 2017. 

The Grocery Certificate program is a fundraising program at St. Thomas. In 2017, $3,500 from the program's 
equity was transferred to the General Fund of St. Thomas. This equity represents the commissions earned 
by buying the certificates at a discount (averaging between 4% and 5% depending on volume purchased). 

A variety of fund raising events were held in 2017 which raised $10,635 (net after expenses) not including 
Grocery Certificates sales mentioned above. These funds are used for multiple purposes such as assisting 
various ministries in their annual s. Fundraisin continues to be the second source of 
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income at St. Thomas. The fundraising events and activities included the following: 

Event/Activity Incomes Expenses Net 
Fish F $2,072.95 $1,279.45 $793.50 
Pancake Dinner $322.95 $102.67 $220.28 
Corn Su er $975.00 $341.32 $633.68 
Garden Plant Sales $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 
Poinsettia Sales $1,294.00 $728.93 $565.07 
Snowflake Bazaar $5,936.40 $236.75 $5,699.65 

$1,065.00 $500.00 $565.00 
$144.68 $0.00 $144.68 
$251 .30 $0.00 $251.30 

$89.95 $0.00 $89.95 
Fall Dinner $2,274.00 $625.18 $1,648.82 
Home Hardware Bridlewood Rebate $23.00 $0.00 $23.00 

*TQQ/s"* $14449.23 $.3. 814.30 $10634.93 

Other Expenses Recovered is payments made by parishioners to use the photocopier for personal use. 

Other Miscellaneous Income relates to other assessable, but non-tax receiptable incomes which is not 
attributable to any other income category. Typically, this includes payments made for Bible purchases by 
parishioners or for other incomes such as for the sale of old tables. 

1501h Fund Incomes, Expenses and 1501h Fund Balances represent the new fund set up in 2015 to record all 
financial activity related to the Church's 251h and 1501h anniversaries in 2015 and 2016. This Fund has now 
been closed. 

This amount relates to a non-assessable Support Grant from the Diocese to help offset our operating costs 
which was received in 2016. 
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St. Thomas was a member of a number of parishes in the Diocese that participated in the now closed GIFT 
program. Contributions by parishioners during 2017 amounted to $1,168.34 of which 50% went to the 
Diocese and 50% to St. Thomas. These amounts are exempted from Fair Share assessment in future years. 
All monies received in the GIFT Fund are reserved for special purposes. The table below details all of the 
GIFT Fund activity since its inception in 2011. 

Description 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 
Janua 1st Balance 
Offerings @ 50% to 
Parish 

Pra er Cards 
Church Hall Tables 
Outreach 2014 
Nicara ua Tri 
Full Pa e Colour Ad 
Donation - Bruyere 
Foundation 
Watoto Concert 
Costs 
Outreach Donation 
Paint and Blinds -
Pra er Room 
Blinds - Council 
Room 
EFM Cost for 
Parishioner 
Banners for Worship 
S ace 
1501h Fund Banners 
and Printin 
Outreach 2016 
Nicara ua Tri 
Chairs for Church 
Hall 
Vision Day 
Luncheon 
Nativity Scene 
Wood 
Photo Directory 
Costs 
PWRDF Donation 
for 150th Anniversa 
EFM Cost for 
Parishioner 
Artwork Purchase -
15Qih Anniversa 
Altar Guild Special 
Pa ment 
Transfer to 1501h 

Fund to Close 
Choir Director 
Paintin Church Hall 
Parade Float Wood 
Senior Choir Music 
Buy-A-Light (Net 
Cost 
December 31st 
Balance 

$0.00 $7,699.17 $15,664.22 $18,778.16 $24,941 .87 $36,732.49 $44,981.67 
$7,699.17 $14,636.91 $16,479.71 $12,833.87 $13,546.29 $16,529.45 $584.17 

($3,000.00) 

($224.65) 

($482.70) 

($350.00) 

($299.00) 

($399.32) 

($1,500.00) 

($4,228.26) 

($99.72) 

($137.00) 

($155.00) 

($500.00) 

($250.00) 

($841.16) 

($300.00) 

($269.13) 

$7,699.17 $15,664.22 $18,778.16 $24,941.87 $36,732.49 $44,981.67 $38,850.91 

Miscellaneous Non-Assessed Income relates to monies received that will not be assessed the Diocese in 
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its Fair Share assessments. 2016 includes $1,310 from the Trivia Night at the Glen that was used to help 
offset the Outreach Nicaragua 2016 trip. 

Incomes and expenditures for the Open Table Fund are recorded separately throughout the year and then 
consolidated with the General Fund financial statements at year end. Details of all the Fund's activity are 
available in the Balance Sheet- Details sheet. 

Transfers in From Other Funds represent transfers made to the General Fund. These transfers represent 
non-assessable incomes when moved to the General Fund because they have either been assessed in prior 
years already or they are considered exempt (such as GIFT Fund monies). In 2017, several transfers were 
made as follows: 

• $4,800.00 from the GIFT Fund to pay for the Choir Director 
• $336.83 from the GIFT Fund to pay for painting of the Church Hall 
• $80.67 from the GIFT Fund to buy wood for the parade float 
• $704.92 from the GIFT Fund to buy music for the Senior Choir 
• $6,000 from the Open Table Fund in support of the General Fund 
• $200.00 from the Open Table Fund to pay for estimates coffee and supplies usage during dinners 
• $424.73 from the Open Table Fund representing 10% of its gross offerings . 
• .r------------------------------------------------------------------------~ 

This area represents transfers from the General Fund to other funds and is used to move flow-through 
incomes received to the proper Fund. 

In 2016 Corporation members established a parish regulation whereby 10% of any in-year surplus (as 
audited) would be moved to the Contingency Fund in support of future emergencies. This new regulation 
replaced an older one that stated 10% of gross rental incomes would be moved to the Contingency Fund. 
That regulation did not state whether the transfer was to take place before or after the net income/deficit 
position for the year. Therefore, this older regulation actually increased a deficit position in years of deficits 
and that is the reason it was updated in 2016. 

Transfers to Other Funds represent expenditures recorded in the books that belong to a reserved Fund such 
as the 1501h Anniversary Fund. These have to be moved to the proper Fund because they would otherwise 
distort the financial statements and the General Fund expenditures. 

Equalized Cost of Priestly Services (ECOPS) is a program administered by the Diocese to "equalize" the 
cost of clergy appointments for all parishes regardless of tenure or salary level of the incumbent. It does not 
represent the actual amount paid to the incumbent but rather is based on the parish's ability to pay as 
determined as a function of their share of the total Diocesan cost of priestly services based on a three-year 
average. 
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Fair Share is a Diocesan assessment based on a Parish's previous three-year average of assessable 
incomes less certain adjustments such as capital improvements and Flowthrough Incomes and Outreach 
donations. The Diocese uses Fair Share assessments to pay for essential Diocesan activities, just as 
parishes use money from offerings for its ministries. The Diocese uses about half of the Fair Share 
assessment to fund Outreach activities for the National Church, for international purposes and for local 
Outreach activities. 

All St. Thomas project expenditures are charged to the Income Statement General Fund unless funding is 
available, such as when another Fund pays for the project. When project costs are charged to another Fund 
there is no impact on the bottom line of the General Fund, in terms of net income or deficit position. In 2017, 
the GIFT Fund paid for all projects listed except for the projector repairs. For the last 12 years, 100% of all 
project expenditures have been charged this way and none have affected the General Fund net income 
position. 

Other Accounts Receivable in 2017 represents the estimated rebate to be received from Hydro Ottawa in 
2018 for our Buy-A-Light program run in 2017. 

HST Receivable is an amount of money owed to St. Thomas by the federal and provincial governments. 
This money is expected to be paid to St. Thomas in the following year. St. Thomas receives a Charity rebate 
in the amount of 0.6969% of all HST paid on most eligible expenditures. The reason that the General Fund 
in 2017 is significantly lower than other years is because we are now claiming this rebate on a quarterly 
basis rather than all at once at the end of each year. This amount includes HST to be paid on behalf of other 
St. Thomas organizations as follows: 

• $692.96 -General Fund 
• $118.28-ACW 
• $115.29 -Altar Guild 
• $6.83 - Cemetery 

Prepaid Project Expenditures represents the 2017 and 2016 website license dues which were paid in the 
year but applicable to the next year. 

Accounts Payable of $1,700.36 is the amount payable for the HST amounts to ACW, Altar Guild and the 
Cemetery Corporation of St. Thomas, as explained in Note 33 (total $240.40) plus the final estimated invoice 
payable for the Buy-A-Light project. 

St. Thomas has a number of reserved Funds managed by various ministries. Reserved means that, 
although they are actually a sub-set of the General Fund, all incomes, expenditures, assets and liabilities are 
managed and reported separately from the General Fund. For consolidated reporting purposes all 
transactions of St. Thomas must flow through the General Fund but are then transferred out to the 
applicable Fund at year end. 

Full details of all Fund transactions are available in the Balance Sheet- Details sheet. 
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PROPOSED !ijeii:I:MtteJ#ii REPORT 

This section of the Vestry financial report deals with the proposed 2018 Budget. As per 
Diocesan Canons, Bylaws and Regulations requirement, the Budget will be discussed and voted 
on at the annual Vestry meeting. Corporation members and Parish Council members have voted 
in favour of approving this budget. 

The 2018 Budget Committee had the objective of developing and delivering a realistic and 
achievable budget on behalf of St. Thomas. The members this year consisted of: 

• Pat McNally - Rector's Warden 
• John Smith - Parish Auditor and Financial Advisor 
• Nicole Dallaway- Fellowship/Fundraising Chairperson 
• and myself, in the position of Budget Chairperson. 

The Budget Committee worked hard with the objective of developing a break-even budget. In 
the end we could not accomplish this goal. Corporation members provided guiding principles 
and suggestions which greatly assisted the Budget Committee. Budget Committee members 
brought essential knowledge and other talents that enhanced each budget meeting. This 
included knowledge of St. Thomas' ministries history, financial comparisons and historical 
information and trends, and independent viewpoints. The combination of these talents allowed 
the Committee to make its decisions in a well-informed environment. 

The 2018 Budget indicates a deficit position of $4,498. 

Operating Incomes 
• Total General Fund Incomes are budgeted to be 2.3% lower than the amounts received 

in 2017. 
Total Offerings are budgeted at 0.3% higher than the 2017 amounts received. 

• Investment, Fundraising, and Other Assessed are budgeted to be 11.7% lower in 2018 
due to decreased Fundraising plans and lower grocery certificate sale commissions. 
Rental Incomes will increase by 6.8% due primarily to increased rental usage. 

Operating Expenditures 
• Diocesan Commitments will increase by 1. 0% or by $1,317. 

Staff and Office Costs will decline 2.3% in 2018. 
• Utilities and Property Costs are budgeted to be 11.0% lower than what was paid in 2017 

due mainly to lower normal maintenance costs, lower snow removal costs and lower 
electricity usage due to lighting savings. 

• Parish Programs will be 5.5% lower than in 2017 because Adult Education expenditures 
will now be funded from the GIFT Fund rather than the General Fund. 

• Outreach and Refugee ministries will be fundraised again in 2018 so no allocation was 
made to these ministrjes at this time except for PWRDF Offering flow-throughs. 

• Overall the Total General Fund Expenditures will be 2.8% lower compared to the total 
amounts spent in 2017 due largely to the extraordinary expenditures we incurred in 
2017. 

There are no additional offerings budgeted to be received for the GIFT program in 2018. 

Any additional projects that are proposed in 2018 will have to be 100% funded before approval 
and implementation. 

We knew going into the process that it would be a tough challenge to produce a balanced 
budget because so many economic factors had to be dealt with. I am proud and thankful for the 
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effort and creativity put forth by the Budget Committee members and particularly for the advice, 
suggestions and oversight by Corporation members. 

I provide monthly financial status reports to Corporation and Parish Council members and 
Parishioners are welcome to request any information about Church finances at any time in the 
year, not just at Vestry time. If you are so inclined please contact the Treasurer directly or 
through the Church office. 

I also wish to remind you about our new "Narrative Budget" that we developed March 2015 
(available on the St. Thomas website). The 2018 Budget included in this report herein is the 
traditional "Line Item" budget and is formulated according to generally accepted accounting 
standards. As such, it is harder to get a true picture of all the good that St. Thomas is doing for 
our parishioners and in our community, for the city and country and internationally. For example, 
simply reading the line item budget you would see $0 budgeted for Outreach and Mission, 
including Refugee. But this is misleading because St. Thomas contributes in so many other 
ways to this ministry. The Narrative Budget will provide you with information about our ministries 
far beyond what the line item budget could ever do. Please read it and let it guide you in your 
own offerings of treasures, talent and time to St. Thomas. 

If you have any questions or feedback to offer please forward them to the Treasurer. 

Respectfully submitted on behalf of the St. Thomas 2018 Budget Committee. 

g.&1-f~ 
Chartered Professional Accountant, Certified Management Accountant 
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St. fJ'fwmas J?tngfican Cliurcft 
High Level Consolidated Income Statement 

Proposed 2018 Budget 

2017- Budget 2017- Actual 

GENERAL FUND INCOMES 
OfferinQs/Bequests $ 152,011 $ 156,612 
Investment Income 2,549 2,640 
FundraisinQ Income 16,000 14,135 
Other Assessed Income 3,275 1,750 
Net Assessed Income 8,381 5,649 
Non-Assessed Income 11,900 4,951 

Total Income Before Transfers $ 194,116 $ 185,737 
Transfers in From Other Funds $ 3,090 $ 12,547 
Transfers to Other Funds (10,555) (8,644) 

• • .. I • ; • • .. I 

GENERAL FUND EXPENSES 
Diocesan Commitments $ 129,693 $ 127,826 
Staff 25,986 33,048 

lies 4,088 4,146 
Utilities 9,937 10,075 

6,855 8,159 
3,659 6,947 
6,138 4,788 

Other E enses 2,195 3,237 
Total Ex nses Before Transfers $ 188,551 $ 198,226 

Transfers to Other Funds {4,300) (3, 126) 

• . .. I : ' II 

' GENERAL FUND SURPLUS I DEFICIT $ 2,400 $ 5 460 

2018- Budget 

$ 157,091 
2,746 

12,800 
2,105 
6,032 
4,570 

$ 185,344 
$ 6,000 

(6,135) 
$ 185,209 

$ 129,143 
32,139 

4,206 
10,244 
5,987 
3,908 
4,525 
2,255 

$ 192,407 
(2,700) 

$ 189,707 

$ 4 498 

OTHER FUND ITEMS NET $ 2,400 $ 2,397 $ -

CONSOLIDATED SURPLUS I DEFICIT $ 7,857 $ 4,498 
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St. fJ'fwmas .!1Lnglican Cliurcft 
Detailed Proposed Budget for 2018 

: ..... 
GENERAL FUND INCOMES 

OFFERINGS/BEQUESTS (Note 2) 

Bequests Offering $ -
Cemetery Fund Offering (Note 3) 900 
Christmas Offering 4,255 
Contingency Fund Offering (Note 4) -
Easter Offering 2,500 
Food Bank Offering (Note 5) -
Improvement Fund Offering (Note 6) -
Initial Offering 170 
Memorial Fund Offering -
Open Offering 4,118 
Other Offerings (Note 8) 600 
Outreach Flowthrough Donations (Note 5) -
PAR & Regular Envelope Offering 134,200 
PWRDF Offering (Note 5) 3,659 
Rector's Discretionary Fund (Note 9) -
Refugee Offering (Note 5) -
Special Project Offering (Note 10) -
Thanksgiving Offering 1,474 
Worship & Liturgy Offering 135 

Subtotal Offerings/Bequests $ 152,011 

INVESTMENT INCOME 
CTF- Bequest #2587 Interest (Note 11) $ -
CTF- Bequest #2658 Interest (Note 12) -
CTF - Rectory #4040 Interest (Note 13) 2,394 
GIG Interest (Note 14) 155 

Subtotal Investment Income $ 2,549 

FUNDRAISING INCOME 
Garden Plant Sales (Note 15) $ -
Grocery Certificates (Note 16) 3,500 
Parish Fundraising (Net) (Note 17) 12,500 

Subtotal Fundraising Income $ 16,000 

OTHER ASSESSED INCOME 
Other Expenses Recovered (Note 18) $ 75 
Other Miscellaneous (Note 19) 1,400 
Peoples' Pulpit Ads 600 
Wadding/Funeral/Reception 1,200 

Subtotal Other Assessed Income $ 3,275 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

NET ASSESSED INCOME 
Facilities Cost Recovery 8,381 I $ 
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2017 - Actual : ..... 

- $ -
1,813 1,824 
4,285 4,328 

400 100 
2,675 2,702 
2,004 -

- -
99 100 

1,150 -
2,712 2,739 

989 1,000 
968 -

132,763 137,755 
3,870 3,908 

275 -
- -

- -
2,475 2,500 

134 135 
156,612 $ 157,091 

- $ -
- -

2,465 2,535 
175 211 

2,640 $ 2,746 

- $ -
3,500 2,000 

10,635 10,800 
14,135 $ 12,800 

134 $ 140 
- -

66 400 
1,550 1,565 
1,750 $ 2,105 

5,6491 $ 6,0321 
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St. Thomas 5tngfican Cliurcfi 
Detailed Proposed Budget for 2018 

2017- Budget 

GENERAL FUND INCOMES Continued 
NON-ASSESSED INCOME 

Alpha Fund Incomes $ -
Diocesan Support Grant (Note 21) -
GIFT Fund Offering (50% to Parish) (Note 22) 5,000 
Miscellaneous Non-Assessed Income (Note 23) 2,400 
Open Table Fund Meal OfferinQs (Note 24) 4,500 

Subtotal Non-Assessed Income $ 11,900 

2017 - Actual 2018- Budget 

$ - $ -
- -

584 -
120 570 

4,247 4,000 
$ 4,951 $ 4,570 

TOTAL. INCOMES BEFORE TRANSFERS 194 11s I $ I 185 737 I $ I 185 344 I I 

TRANSFERS IN FROM OTHER FUNDS (Note 25) 

Transfer in from Contingency Fund $ - $ - $ -
Transfer in from Gift Fund 2,400 5,922 6,000 
Transfer in from Improvement Fund - - -
Transfer in from Memorial Fund - - -
Transfer in from Rector's Disc. Fund - - -
Transfer in from Open Table Fund 690 6,625 -

Subtotal Transfers In From Other Funds $ 3,090 $ 12,547 $ 6,000 

TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS (Note 26) 

Continqencv Fund (10% Surplus) (Note 27) $ - $ - $ -
Transfer to Alpha Fund - - -
Transfer to Cemetery Fund (900) (1,813) (1,824) 
Transfer to Continqencv Fund - (400) (100) 
Transfer to Gift Fund (5,000) (584) -
Transfer to Improvement Fund - - -
Transfer to Memorial Fund - (1,150) -
Transfer to Open Table Fund - Incomes (4,500) (4,247) (4,000) 
Transfer to Open Table Fund - GIC Interest (155) (175) (211) 
Transfer to Rector's Discretionary Fund - (275) -

Subtotal Transfers to Other Funds $ (10,5555 $ (8,644) $ (6, 135) 

TOTAL GENERAL FUND INCOMES $ 186,651 $ 189,640 $ 185,209 
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2017- Budget 

GENERAL FUND EXPENSES 
DIOCESAN COMMITMENTS 

ECOPS (Note 29) $ 97,993 
Fair Share (Note 30) 27,451 
Insurance 4,249 

Subtotal Diocesan Commitments $ 129,693 

STAFF 
Caretaker $ 4,410 
Choir Director -
Employer Share of CPP/EI 358 
Organist 6,625 
Replacement Priests 856 
Secretary 12,237 
Treasurer/Bookkeeper 1,500 

Subtotal Staff $ 25,986 

OFFICE/COMPUTER SUPPLIES 
Office & Computer Equipment $ 100 
Supplies, Postage, Bulletin 1,000 
Photocopy Services 2,988 

Subtotal Office/Computer Supplies $ 4,088 

UTILITIES 
Gas $ 2,440 
Hydro 3,458 
Internet/Email 801 
Security System 228 
Telephone 2,096 
Water 914 

Subtotal Utilities $ 9,937 

CHURCH PROPERTY 
Cleaner's Supplies $ 500 
Elevator 600 
Furnace & NC Maintenance Plans 704 
Normal Maintenance & Repair 1,465 
Piano Tuning 248 
Snow Removal & Grass Cutting 3,338 

Subtotal Church Property $ 6,855 

PARISH OUTREACH 
Food Bank $ -
Outreach -
PWRDF 3,659 
Refuqee -

Subtotal Parish Outreach $ 3,659 
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2017 - Actual 2018- Budget 

$ 96,126 $ 98,054 
27,451 26,840 

4,249 4,249 
$ 127,826 $ 129,143 

$ 4,987 $ 4,987 
4,800 6,000 

306 358 
6,625 6,625 
2,520 883 

12,310 11,786 
1,500 1,500 

$ 33,048 $ 32,139 

$ 72 $ 70 

835 842 
3,239 3,294 

$ 4,146 $ 4,206 

$ 2,731 $ 2,776 
2,801 2,847 

798 812 
224 228 

2,234 2,272 
1,287 1,309 

$ 10,075 $ 10,244 

$ 234 $ 238 
814 900 
898 913 

1,772 1,000 
379 390 

4,062 2,546 
$ 8,159 $ 5,987 

$ 2,004 $ -
1,073 -
3,870 3,908 

- -
$ 6,947 $ 3,908 
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2017- Budget 

GENERAL FUND EXPENSES Continued 
PARISH PROGRAMS 

Adult Education $ 200 
God's Garden (Church School) 300 
Music - Licences 373 
Music - Senior Choir 50 
Open Table Fund Expenses (Note 24) 4,300 
Parish Picnic 40 
Pastoral Care 100 
Reception/Catering 100 
Stewardship 275 
Worship & Liturgy 400 

Subtotal Parish Programs $ 6,138 

OTHER EXPENSES 
Advertising $ 300 
Altar Guild Supplies 400 
Bank Charges 500 
Communications 100 
Fellovvship & Hospitality 375 
Kitchen Committee 20 
Memorial Fund Expenses -
Miscellaneous Expense -
Peoples' Pulpit 200 
Rector Discretionary Expense -
Synod 300 

Subtotal Other Expenses $ 2,195 

2017- Actual 2018- Budget 

$ 330 $ -
404 400 
403 400 

- 100 
2,876 2,700 

51 50 
35 100 

110 100 
88 275 

491 400 
$ 4,788 $ 4,525 

$ 1,067 $ 300 
300 300 
492 500 
95 95 

234 250 
47 50 

- -
- -

464 472 
250 -
288 288 

$ 3,237 $ 2,255 

TOTAL EXPENSES BEFORE TRANSFERS I$ 188 551 I $ I 198 22s I $ I 192 407 I I 

TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS (Note 28) 

Transfer to Alpha Fund $ - $ - $ -
Transfer to Contingency Fund - - -
Transfer to Gift Fund - - -
Transfer to Memorial Fund - - -
Transfer to Open Table Fund (4,300) (2,876) {2,700) 
Transfer to Rector's Discretionary Fund - (250) -

Subtotal Transfers to Other Funds $ (4,300) $ (3, 126) $ (2,700) 

TOTAL GENERAL FUND EXPENSES $ 184,251 $ 195,100 $ 189,707 

GENERAL FUND SURPLUS I (DEFICIT) $ 2,400 $ 5,460 $ 4,498 
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: ... 
OTHER FUND ITEMS 

PROJECT EXPENSES (Note 31) 

Buy-A-Light Energy Reduction (Net Cost) $ -
Painting Church Hall -
Wood for Parade Float -
Music for Senior Choir -
Projector Repairs -
Upgrade Three Bathrooms 2,400 

Subtotal Project Expenses $ 2,400 

CONSOLIDATED SURPLUS I DEFICIT 
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2018- Budget 

$ 793 $ -
337 -

81 -
705 -
481 -

- -
$ 2,397 $ -

$ 7,857 $ 4,498 


